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CHRONOLOGY OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

rrives in

larrives in

September|

COBALT

| loperational as interrogation/ detenhon facnhty
receives first detainee.

COBALT

September

receives eight detainees. writes in cable, .
officers are present daily and have the maximum

possﬂ:le degree of control."

October

Gul Rahman js apprehended in Pakistan.

Psychologist (C) Bruce Jessen arrives in|

Physician’s Assistant arrives in

l

(Approximate)| _|first goes to] ] COBALT

November|

Rahman is rendered to COBALT

land Jessen interview Rahman.

November

land Jessen interview Rahman.

(Approximate) Rahman given cold shower.

Rahman is subjected to Hard Takedown.

November|

(Approximate) Rahman’s pants removed, .

COBALT

supervisor has concern regarding hypothermia.

ximate) Counterterrorist Center supervisor visits
Rahman wearing only socks and diaper; .

cable reports Rahman sitbjected to 48 hours of

. sleep deprivation, rough treatment, cold shower and

other measures but remained noncompliant.

requests Headquarters consider planmng for altematwe
interrogation measures.

November|

cable reports Rahman is uncooperahvel

. g |
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Rahman admits identity during interrogation wi
Jessen, Rahman will be
reinterviewed on| |November. Cable notes Rahman had
been subjected to cold conditions and minimum food and
sleep, and he was confused due to dehydranon and
fatigue.

November Bureau of Prisons offlcers arr1ve| |trammg
| program for| lguards begins and runs until
. LtNovember
C Psychologist {(C).James Mitchell amves[
November{ |

foncurs with Headquarters proposal to send
‘newly graduated interrogators to Ll ; -

COBALT

Headquarters requests psychological assessment and

|
‘assessment on interrogation measures to render Rahman

compliant. ' g

Jessen conducts psychological captivity assessment on
Rahman; Jessen'’s sixth session with Rahman.

(Approximate sees Rahman af E s
does not examine him.

~| _COBALT

(Approximate) guard commander reports that
Rahman told the guards he would kill them or! have them
killed after his release.

— eagis

November| |

Mitchell, Jessen, and| Idepart

Nbvemberl |

able recommends future use of contmued
environmental deprivations with m’cerrogahons 18 out of
24 hours daily.

Rahman given second cold shower.

November| |[to
November

A provides follow-up care al{ to
certain detainees, but not Rahman.

November| ]

(Approximate) Linguist
questio bout the temperature at which
hypothermia occurs. .

(Aftemoon)l last sees Rahman ahve, g1ves h1m
sweatshirt. :

COBALT
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Mitchell and
Jessen depart

o November|
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- | 2100 hrs - Rahman consumes last meal; hand rlestramts

removed.

Feturns to) | ‘ "

1500 hrs — Rahman provided food; throws food and
bucket and threatens guards.

1530 hrs ~ Guard informs____Jof mcxdent -
directs guards to replace Rahman’s hand restraints.

Late afternoon - informs two officers at! |
about Rahman's conduct. '

COBALT

2200 hrs - guard check ~ Rahman is alive.

{2300 hrs — guard check ~ Rahman is alive.

0400 hrs — guard check ~ Rahman is alive.

| November]

0800 hrs — guard check — Rahman is alive, |

1000 hrs — guard check — Rahman is dead.

1200 hrs — Bureau of Prisons officers depart| |

able reports chronology of events connected with

| the death of Rahman.

Novemberl

cable describes| medical support o
detainees in| fustody..Reports all detainees have

been cooperative with medical persorinel except Rahman. | |

November;

DO Investigative Team arrives at| [ 1.

Ncr_vember

Pathologist conducts autopsy.

SEERET/[  JNOFORNA/MR
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CIA's Use of Contract Interrogators/Debriefers

m{:}mﬂ From the inception of CIA's Rendition and Detention Program,
contract interrogators have been a key component in the Agency's Global War on Terrorism.
Early on, it was clear that the CIA's exploitation program would place a high demand on the
limited availability of experienced NCS Core Collectors. . In addition, the trained and experienced
pool of experts required to carry out the exploitation mission did not reside in the Agency nor was
it considered part of the Agency's core mission. Interrogation.and Exploitation skll!s&:—ﬁ;nlr
(ﬁﬁqmm years to develop and mature to be utilized effectively. Furthermore, sta
~ ofiicers routinely change assignments every 2-3 years, which does not allow for either adequate
training or the long-term development of required expertise. Consequently, as was pointed out in
an independent Program Review conducted by senior leve) Agency officers, utilizing highly:
trained and experienced contract interrogators, under the direct supervision and oversight of
Agency staff, allows for the most effective use of key interrogation skills, as wells as allow core
coliectors to focus more readily on the counter-terrorism mission. Hence, we plan to continue

identifying and hiring contractors with the requisite skills, knowledge, and experience to further
enhance the Program. ' : . ’

FS_ IANF) | The |
Debriefing training. program was developed and first run in June 2003 after it became clear that a
formal training program was required to develop these particular skills and expertise. As the
number of detainees grew, it increased the responsibility of debriefers to handle more of the day
to day interaction with the detainees. In order to do this successfully, we incorporated what was
learned from previous interaction with detainees and built a course of instruction to include a

basic understanding of Debriefer/Detainee interaction, roles and respansibilities of the
interrogation team, legal guidelines, reporling issues, and role playing using aclual examples of

debriefings that worked well and those that did not, |
[ . |To date, we have
trained[__Ktaff and contract officers from all CTC components, with approximately 80% of these

staff. However, most of the slaff officers have moved on to different assignments and are no
longer available. As of this writing, there are clrcaC]tralned staff and contract debriefers in CTC
‘but the staff officers also have ofher fulltime responsibilities] _____Ithat makes their |
availability to travel for[ ] on short notice very difficull, Hence, we rely on the small

contractor cadre that Is avallable 24/7 to serve as debriefers for the majority of |
debriefing requirements. )

To date, CT as trained[ ] -
interrogators[__[of which were Staff employees an were contractors. Currently, as the resuit

of reassignment and self-selection out of the Program for various reasans, there are[ Jactive and
available contract Interrogators and an additiona niractors who are trained and qualified but
are assigned to other requirements. [ [of the contractors are considered Senior |
interrogators and the other{ Jare Trained and Qualified but not yet cerlified. Of lhe|:|$tafr
contractors only[__emain available to the program but also require certification. '

) Interrogators are recognized as “Trained and Qualified”, upon:’
successful completion of the CTC High Value Detainee Interrogators (HVDI) training course
and subsequent approval by and Senior HVDI Instructors' recommendation that the,
candidate _has su full rated their ab a High Value Detginee Interrogs

ULl

E
|
|
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| _ ] . |

|

Before 11 September, 2001, the Agency had no resident expartise
in Interrogation and CTC sought the required skills fro t pertinent organizations, The !
Agency’s Office of Technical Servic entified two contract PhD.
Clinical Psychologists, both certified Senfor HVDI instructors and Interrogators in crealing the
Interrogation Program as well as continued training and education. The two Clinical
Psychalogists developed the first SERE (Survival, Evasion, Resistarce & Escape) Psychologists
Standards and the first Cetification Course for the U.S. Air Force while serving in the military. In
addition, they provided all the initial SERE psychology training for the military and served as the
model for all future SERE psychologists. Combined, they have over 38 years experience in this
area and have demonstrated the expertise to assist in the development of psychological |

assessments lools in the areas of framing exploitation questions, detecting deception along, with
Cl issues for individuals not under our contro! and whose cooperation and veracity is vet to be

determined. In addition, we identified a retired|
|as well as a retired

They all bring a syne §tlc

ap c rogram. .
]
6FS/| NF}-Since neither a Program nor the required expertise were available,
CTC| ldeveloped a “road map* required 1o stand-up a viable program to include screening,
training, the understanding of legal issues, documentation, management, and oversight. The
team of Senior HVDI Instructor used their previous experience and expertise to train Interrogator
- Candidates In the psychological aspects of an interrogation as well as the training in and |
compliance with the approved physical measures adopted from SERE instruction. With respect
1o the physical measures (EIT"), the Program was based on the principle of “using the least |
coercive measures first” to achieve compliance and cooperation. . i

P8/ JNP Asthe result of the Detainee Treatment Act, Comon Article 3 and
the Military Commission Act of October 2008, the use of EiTs is cumrently on hotd pending a
review by DOJ. Even though we are awaiting the updated DOJ opinion, the Senior HVDI i
Instructor Team is diligently working 1o develop a variely of psychological techniques to assist in
exploitation and, pending DOJ's approval, employ the approved EITs only when compliance and
cooperation cannot be achieved without the use coercive measures as approved by Hgs. I

(re. The overall responsibility for the management of the OCONUS site,
site staff to include contract security specialists, contract lingulsts and debriefers, Interrogation
Team, and the detainees resides with the Staff Site Program Manager. The Site Program |

. Manger must ensure that all site staff and contractor support comply with all HQS regulations,
legal guidelines, site and| [SOPs. Although Agency contractors lead and
conduct the interrogations, they are constantly monitored to ensure compliance with all policies
and procedures and the Site Program Manager provides Hgs with detailed correspondence;on
both a regular and on an as needed basis, . . [

|
i
!

i
£
|
!

IE:QP-SEGRETA [NGFGRNl

|
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27 November 2007

SUBJECT: ¢1s/] /N®) CIA's Use of Contract
Interrogators

1.  ¢s/] /xr) |

| We offer theé following '
justification and background to support future use of
contractors as High Value Detainee Interrogators (HVDI)s.

2. ¢#8/[ " lmem From the inception of CIA's -
Detention and Interrogation Program, contract interrogators
have been a key component in the Agency's Global War on
Terrorism. Before 11 September 2001, the Agency lacked!
resident expertise in interrogation. ‘As CIA developed its
interrogation program after debriefing methods had failed
to gain information from Abu Zubaydah, CTC Sought the
required skills from other pertinent organizations, since
it was clear that a trained and experienced pool of experts
to carry out the mandate did not reside in the Agency. CTC
also instituted a training program to build our -expertise.
The number of hours of basic training required to become a
CIA trained and qualified interrogator is 280 hours. The
interrogator must then spend time in-the field at a CIA
Blacksite under the oversight-of the Staff Site Manager and
Senior HVDI for at least an additional 20 hours of active
interrogation. To date, CTC has trained [:]interrogatorﬁ,

of whom were Staff employees and[ |were contractors.:

3. s/ ‘NF) As nioted above, the CIA %
initially soug 6 maintain a balance between staff and
contract interrogators. However, it quickly became
apparent as the program matured that the unique skill sets
necessary for a successful interrogation program did not
make it feasible for CIA to create a cadre of long-term

WDW/20321120
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experienced staff interrogators. Interrogation and:
exploitation skills require
years to develop and mature to be used effectively. :
Because staff officers routinely change assignments every
2-3 years, they are not.available for the long-term '
development to be interrogation experts. The Agency
determined therefore not to continue training and using CIA
staff officers as interrogators. As the result of natural
reassignments and self-selection out of the program for |
various reasons, there are currently ctive and availgble . ”
interrogators, all of whom are contractors;| |are senior
certified interrogators,| Jare certified interrogators, .and
2 are trained and qualified but yet to be certified.

4, (TS/[::::::::VN?} The contract interrogators

operate under the authority and direction of senior Agency

staff officers and provide CIA’s unique interrogation

program with the strongest level of experience, continuity,
and consistency. As the program continues to evolve, this
continuity of experience is critical. Long~term contract
interrogators are able to apply a history of program~
specific experiences and lessons-~learned to maximize
interrogation and exploitation efforts. CIA would be

unable to replicate this level of experience from a

temporary cadre of staff interrogators. CIA’s éurrent i

contract cadre of senior certified interrogators consists

of: !

‘e a clinical psychologist with 18 years experience in
intelligence operations related to human behavior in
captivity, interrogation and resistance to i
interrogation, with five years experience in the CIa
program; . ‘ ' i

® 2 clinical psychologist with 20 years expertise in
intelligence operations related to human behavior in
captivity, interrogation and resistance interrogation,

" with five years experience in the CIA program;

i

WM/ZOBZ;lzo
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. 5. s/ Ja¥ The overall responsibility for
the management of Blacksites, to include contract security
specialists, contract linguists, debriefers, interrqqqtion
team, and the detainees remains the responsibility of CIA

' staff officers, specifically with the Staff Site Managers.
A Site Manager must ensure that all site staff and ’
contractor support comply with all HOS regulations, légal
guidelines, site and | | Standard Operating
.Procedures. With regard to interrogations specifically,

the contractors conducting the interrogations are underithe .

Supervision of the Site Manager and constantly monitored by
Rgency staff officers during interrogatioh sessions to
ensure compliance with all 'policies and procedures.

6. (25/] VNF) In 2004, senior.CIA officers
were tasked by the then ADDO te provide an informal 5
Operational assessment of the detainee program. While the
review noted that the DO should focus on its core mission
(clandestine intelligence operations),- it also highlighted
that the Agency must continue to commit its resources to
this program.’ Using highly trained and experienced :
contract interrogators, under the direct ‘supervision and
oversight of Agency staff, allows for the most effective
-and efficient management ‘of the program now and into the
future. 4 ' ;

TOP-SEEGRET/[  |/NOFORN//20321120 i
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(P8I J1NF) Role of Mitchell, Jessen, and Assaciates in CTC/ __ RDG
. _program

(TSfl:[lNF) Background: A/OGC requested background
information on the role of Mitcheli, Jessen, and Associates in the CTC[__JRDG
program, in anticipation of a briefing for Senator Levin on 20 June. '

CTi RDG provides the following information for A/QGC's review, -

(F8{__ INE) CTC[_RDG determined the need to contract an
outside source of professional expertise in the area of human exploitation, *
interrogation, and management of terrorist High Value Detainees (HVDs) in ways
that facilitate intelligence collection. Trained and experienced pools of experts
necessary to carry out the exploitation mission do not reside in CIA, nor is it
considered part of CIA's core mission. Mitchell, Jessen, and Associates (MJA),
established in March 2005 by Drs. James E. Mitchell and J. Brice Jessen, was
granted a sole source contract to support CTC's rendition, detention, and :
interrogation program.

s IINF) CTC___RDG has primarily relied since its
inception on contract interrogators to provide the necessary skills in human.
influence and exploitation to elicit information from resistant HVD’s. Ph.D
psychologists, Drs. Mitchell and Jessen played a significant and formative role in
the development of CTC’s detention and interrogation program and continue to
lead in the development of additional psychologically-based strategies to collect
threat and actionable intelligence from HVDs in a manner that does not violate
any federal law, the US Constitution, or any US treaty obligation. They have
been instrumental in training and mentoring other CIA interrogators and |
debriefers, and many of the current successes in obtaining information from
detainees who are actively trying to withhold or distort it, are due to the
interrogations conducted by Drs. Mitchell and Jessen.

i

TOPSEERET[  |NF

i
i
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(’Fﬁmﬂﬂ CTC[__|therefore sought a sole source contract
with MJA to provide the critical interrogation, and security exploitation skills |
necessary to perform this mission. To date, MJA provides 100 percent of lhe
security exploitation personnel operating at Blacksites, and approximately
80 percent of CIA's interrogators f th urrent interrogators do not
work for MJA). Most of the current security exploitation specialists how working.
for MJA on this contract are former___|officers who had experience working
CTC/RDG's program when|: provided the security support. Finally, MJA is
also contracted to provide security support to RDG rendition missions, which is
separate from the exploitation secunly speciahst role. i

('FS:{_‘_J—_?NF ) Drawing on their complete understandung of this

compartmented program, as well as their unique background, expenenoas

praclnces and contlnued covert influence strategy reseasch MJA is also
le fi 2 iding, as dire

NF) MJA provides a roxlmatel personnel in direct
.support of the RDG mission. This includes| linterrogators, [ Isecurity i
exploitation specialists, rasnmg
officers |operating out of RDG Hgs
spaces, an specialists (who work primarily for -
&vuce RDG.) RDG currently employs| _taff officers; 1 who serves as &
Blacksite manager, and the rest in Hqs management, support, facilities, or desk

officer positions.. RDG also employs other, non-MJA contract assistance at both
Hgs and Blacksites, which are limited to support and debriefer roles.

(Fs/ NF) MJA, on this contract, also provides m:erroga’aqn
resistance training at their Spokane facmty to other components such

- CTq

S[_______ INF) Bottomline: MJA is critical to the continued suocess
of RDG's rendition, detention and interrogation program. MJA provides the vast
majority of interrogators, provides all/all the security exploitation specialists :
responsible for handling detainees at Blacksites, in consultation with RDG
develops and conducts the necessary training to ensure both interrogators and
exploitation specialists are properly trained, and prepared to effectively operate in
the field, and is responsible for continuing to research and develop new mﬁuence
strategies as interrogation tools, to help obviate the need for physical pressures.
They also play a significant role in providing resistance training to other
MJA is a cornerstone for the success of the I|QDG
mission. ; |

Salim v. Mitchell - United States Bates ﬁ;Stamp #001630
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1. How much has the CIA paid Mitchell and Jessen since 20027

) Dr. James Mitchell was paid a total of $1,459,601.43 as an
independent contractor (IC) to the CIA from FY 2001 to FY 2005. This included services
‘to the Directorate of Science and Technology and to the CTC Rerditions, Detentions
and Interrogations Program (RDI). Costs from FY 2001 through FY 2005 mciude
payment for research and development as well as operational services.

&S } Dr. J. Bruce Jessen was paid a total of $1,204,550.42 as an
IC to the CiATrom FY 2002 to FY 2005. This included services to the Directorate of
Science and Technology and to the CTC/RDI. Costs from FY 2002 thru FY 2005 include
payment for rssearch and development as well as operational services.

(—IS-JF) During FY 2005, Drs. Mitchell and Jessen formed Mnchell
Jessen, and Associates (MJA) ending their role as independent contractors. In addition
to continuing the provision of professionat services by Drs, Mitchell and Jessen, MJA
provided qualified interrogators, detainee security officers for CIA detention sites, and
curricuium development and training services for the RDI program. MJA also provided
training services for other CTC/SMD elements unrelated to the RD! program. From FY
2005 through 23 January 2009, MJA was paid a total of $71,968,923.90. :

: During the penods Drs. Mitchell and Jessen, and later MJA,
were assaciated with the CTC/RDI program, the program provided intelligence to dusmpt
terrorist'plots, remove terrorist leaders from the battlefield, and deny AQ a safe h ven in
which to plan and train. |

’ | CIA assesses
that most, if not alf, of the timely intelligence acquired from detainees In this program
would not have been discovered or reported by any other means.

Salim v. Mitchell - United States Bates Stamp #001906
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High Value Detainees (HVDs) in the RDI program also|
allowed us to confirm reporting from other clandestine sources, and helped connect
fragmentary information, such as special intelligence, cyber collection, and media and
computer exploitation. Over 80 percent of the disseminated reporting cbtained from the
RDI program was passed to foreign liaison service partners, assisting them in the;
prevention and disruption of plots and enabling the capture of other terrorists. Below are
some of the key captures, disrupted plots, and intelligence gained from HVDs in the RDI
program,

Key Captures: T
The unraveling of Jemah Islamiya (Ji) and the network of AQ senior
associate Hambali; (Js this a capture?) I
The arrest of Dhiren Barot (aka Issa al-Hindi) in the United Kingdom:;
idenfitying the "other” shoe bomber —~ Sajid Badat; '
The arrest of Jose Padilia and Binyam Muhammed; ?
The arrest of lyman Favis.

Major Plots Disrupted:
The West Coast Airliner Plot; ‘ :
Heathrow Airport Plot;
The Karachi Plots; ;
Plots in the Saudi Peninsula.

2. Is Mitchell, Jessen and Associates currently under contract?

(S#NF) Yes, a decision has been made to exercise the final optlon year of the cohtract
beginning 2 March 2009, with a planned significant reduction in the requuements and

. cost.

3. itthey are currently under contract how much will CIA pay for their contract for
this fiscal year?

LS/NF)- The actual cost 6f the contract in FY 2008 is currently unknown. The scope and
value of the contract are largely dependent on the decommissioning of the existing
facilities, the plans for which are currently under review. We do expect a significant
reduction in FY 2002 from previous years but the exact contract cost is as yet unkpown.

Salim v. Mitchell - United States Bates étamp #001907
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MJA
{Mitchell, Jessen & Associates)

5

”

CTC[___]has contracted with MJA, a company started by two PhD SERE
psychologists James Mitchell and Bruce Jessen, to provide unique support and
services to[ _ |CTC, and the Agency. 5 |

This effort has six broad objectives.

; » . The first objective is to ensure CTC and CIA senior management access
to senior-level professionals with the prerequisite depth of psychological
expertise and operational experience required to provide sound, -
actionable advice and recommendations on program development and
operational efforts to obtain critical, time sensitive intelligence from high
value sources who may be trying to distort or withhold information:

» The second objective is to provide the Sponsor with the depth of |
professional psychological expertise and operational experience r{equired
to provide operational consultation and support to the Sponsor's on-going
operational efforts to extract actionable intelligence from sources that may
be agctively trying to withhold or distart information. ‘One of MJA's first
tasks is to recruit and train CTC DG| ;

> The third objective is to provide the Sponsor with the depth of professional
expertise and operational experience required to: :

.. ’ !

(c) Provide consultation on the short and long-term management of détainees
in ways that facilitate intelfigence collection. :

> The fourth objective is to provide the Sponsor with a cadre of oper;'-.\tionally
deployable personnel with critical skill sets who can augment or mentor
(Sponsor) personnel in efforts to obtain intelligence from sources who may
befattempting to distort or withhold such information. The cadre sl?all
include operational psychologists and intemogators who ¢an augment
C.L.A. personnel, : ' 5

TOP-SECRET| NOFORNAMR-
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» The fifth objective is to place on contract a capability to provide |
interrogation, resistance to interrogation, and exploitation training to
personnel identified by the Sponsor. The Contractor shall provide:training
personnel and secure facilities for training that can be used to provide

training on topics and skills required to support on-going operational
requirements. ' |

developnient of the very successful CTC[___JRDG Detention and Interrogation
Program. Because of their unique talents, experience, and ex pertise, I:i]
expanded their roles to support the activities in the othel Groups as well as
the Center. In addition to their critical activities in RDG, Mitchell and Jessen
(now MJA)'fare also involved in the following activities: i

Beginning in March 2002, Dr.s Mitchell and Jessen were instrumental in tfhe

; i

. Recruitedljhighly trained and experienced MJA contract interrogators to
insure we have the required capability resident at each Blacksite.
Furtpermore, they have established an on-going meticulous and rigorous

interrogation training and certification program with follow-up refresher
courses.

!
i
{

Provide high-level briefings to the 77 floor, %

4 Salim-v. Mitchell - United States Bates Stamp #001909.
12/20/2016
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The requirements we have levied on MJA are purposely very broad and éiiverse.
However, MJA has the background and networking required to recruit the unique -

talent and experience to meet our needs. The current MJA contract calls for a
one year base with 4 options years. : ;

Carteme e e v
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MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD

FROM:
CHIEF, COUNTERINTELLIGENCE EVALUATION BRANCH
COUNTERESPIONAGE GROUP
COUNTERINTELLIGENCE CENTER

SUBJECT : RAHMAN DEATH INVESTIGATION - INTERVIEW OF JOHN B. JESSEN

ON| |JANUARY 2003, I INTERVIEWED JOHN BRUCE JESSEN REGARDING THE
DEATH OF GUL RAHMAN. JESSEN IS A CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGIST EMPLOYED BY CIA
AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. JESSEN WAS DIRECTLY INVOLVED IN THE

INTERROGATION OF GUL RAHMAN,

JESSEN HAS A PHD IN CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGY AND SPENT 20 YEARS ON
ACTIVE DUTY WITH THE US AIR FORCE. WHILE ON ACTIVE DUTY WITH USAF, JESSEN
WORKED AS A PSYCHOLOGIST WITH THE JOINT PERSONNEL RECOVERY AGENCY. AFTER
LEAVING ACTIVE DUTY WITII USAF, JESSEN WENT TO WORK DOD AS A CIVILIAN
PSYCHOLOGIST. WHILE EMPLOYED BY DOD, HE SERVED AS THE SENIOR
PSYCHOLOGIST FOR THE SURVIVAL, EVASION, RESISTANCE, AND ESCAPE (SERE)
PROGRAM. ONE OF THE THINGS JESSEN WAS INVOLVED WITH IN THIS PROGRAM WAS
THE INTERROGATION OF PRISONERS. DURING THIS PERIOD, JESSEN HAD CONTACT WITH
CIA THROUGH DOD ON CAPTIVITY RELATED ISSUES. JESSEN STATED THAT HE
WORKED FOR DOD FOR EIGHT YEARS. HE WAS SUBSEQUENTLY CONTACTED BY JOSE
RODRIGUEZ, C/CTC AND ASKED TO COME TO WORK FOR CIA ON A SPECIAL
PROJECT. JESSEN BEGAN WORK FOR CIA ON 20 JUL 2002.

JESSEN STATED THAT HIS DUTIES AT CIA HAVE INVOLVED THE INTERROGATION

Salim v. Mitchell - United States Bates #001047
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OF HIGH AND MEDIUM VALUE TERRORIST TARGETS (HVT, MVT). JESSEN STATED THAT
HE HAS INTERROGATED PRISONERS AT | A | JESSEN 1S

. INVOLVED IN THE USE OF ENHANCED INTERROGATION METHODS. JESSEN STATED
THAT FOR THE MOST PART THERE HAS BEEN ONLY ONE PRISONER WHO HAS BEEN
RECEIVING ENHANCED INTERROGATION TECHNIQUES; HOWEVER, RECENTLY ONE
MORE PRISONER BEGAN RECEIVING THIS TREATMENT.

JESSEN STATED THAT HIS FIRST T'RIP\; B } WAS IN NOVEMBER 2002.
COBALT JESSEN STATED THAT HE WAS AT _T IUNTIL HE RECEIVED A MESSAGE ASKING
HIM TO PROCEED TQ| ) JTO LOOK AT A FEW PRISONERS. GUL RAHMAN WAS
|

NOT ONE OF THESE PRISONERS.| ‘

| 7 \JESSEN STATED THAT HE WAS ASKED TO LOOK AT THE
PRISONERS TO DETERMINE IF THEY SHOULD BE CONSIDERED FOR ENHANCED
INTERROGATION TECHNIQUES. JESSEN STATED THAT  |TURNED OUT BE BE
PRETTY COOPERATIVE.

JESSEN STATED THAT HE DEPARTED | ~ lon| Jocroeer 2002
AND WENT THROUGH | |CIRCA| |NOV 2002. JESSEN COULD NOT RECALL IF
RAHMAN WAS THERE WHEN HE INITIALLY ARRIVED, BUT HE THINKS HE RAHMAN
_ARRIVED SHORTLY THEREAFTER. JESSEN RECALLED THAT HE WAS GETTING ORIENTED TO
' WHEN RAHMAN ARRIVED. JESSEN STATED THAT HE WAS NOT PART OF
RAHMAN'S RENDITION. HE STAYED| APPROXTMATELY 2 1/2 WEEKS.

JESSEN COULD NOT RECALL THE DATE HE FIRST HAD CONTACT WITH RAHMAN,
BUT HE DID REMEMBER THAT PEOPLE IN THE STATION WERE VERY OPTIMISTIC THAT
THEY HAD SOMEONE WHO WAS GOING TO HAVE SOME GOOD TNFORMATION. |

[ |SPOKE TO JESSEN ABOUT RAHMAN AT SOME POINT. | 7
— B

| 7 |JESSEN STATED THAT|  |ASKED HIM ABOUT
INTERROGATING THE GUY. UPON REFLECTION, JESSEN STATED THAT HE MAY HAVE

BEEN THERE FOR RAHMAN'S FIRST INTERROGATION, BUT THAT| |ACTUALLY DID THE
INTERROGATION.|  |AND JESSEN CONSULTED ABOUT THE INTERROGATION

BEFOREHAND. JESSEN STATED THAT THEY COLLABORATED ON SOME OF THE

APPROACHES HE MIGHT WANT TO-TAKE WITH RAHMAN. JESSEN STATED THAT HE

MAY HAVE BEEN THERE FROM THE START OF RAHMAN'S INTERROGATIONS, BUT HE

DIDN'T BEGIN INTERROGATING UNTIL LATER BECAUSE HE WAS WORKING WITH THE

OTHER PRISONERS. JESSEN STATED THAT HE LISTENED IN ON ONE OF THE EARLY
INTERROGATIONS CONDUCTED BY | AFTER THINKING ABOUT IT, HE STATED THAT

IT MAY HAVE BEEN THE FIRST INTERROGATION. JESSEN STATED THAT HE SAT BEHIND

| | DURING THE FIRST INTERROGATION NHILE’ ‘CONDUCTED IT.
WHEN DESCRIBING RAHMAN'S PHYSICAL APPEARANCE DURING THE FIRST
INTERROGATION, JESSEN INITIALLY STATED THAT HE WAS WEARING PAJAMAS OR
SWEATPANTS. AFTER SOME REFLECTION HE STATED, "HE MAY HAVE JUST HAD A
DIAPER ON." JESSEN STATED THAT RAHMAN HAD CLOTHES ON AND OFF AS PART OF
WHAT THEY WERE DOING TO HIM. JESSEN STATED THAT HE COULD NOT REMEMBER
SPECIFICALLY WHAT HE WAS WEARING. SOMETIMES HE WOULD HAVE A BLANKET.
IN TERMS OF HIS PHYSICAL APPEARANCE, HE DID LOOK ROBUST. HE DID LOOK TIRED,
BUT HIS POSTURE WAS PRETTY GOOD, PRETTY COMPOSED.
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JESSEN REVIEWED THE CABLE RECOUNTING THE FIRST TWO INTERROGATIONS.
JESSEN STATED THAT THE CABLE IS PRETTY MUCH WHAT HE RECALLS. JESSEN SAID
HE GAVE} |MANY OF THE BULLETS THAT WERE USED IN THE CABLE. JESSEN

STATED TH.AT‘ |was a CAPABLE GUY, BUT HE REALLY HADN'T DONE THIS KIND

OF THING BEFORE. JESSEN STATED THAT HE PROVIDED" ‘WIT’H
L J

L -
DESCRIPTIONS OF
WHAT| WAS ALREADY NOTICING.

JESSEN STATED THAT HE HAD GENERAL DISCUSSIONS WITH | |ovER a
PERIOD OF TIME. JESSEN STATED THAT RAHMAN WAS OBVIOUSLY A VERY TOUGH
CHARACTER. IT APPEARED TO US THAT HE WAS SMARTER THAN HE WAS LETTING ON.
THE INTERPRETOR SAID HIS LANGUAGE WAS GOOD SUGGESTING A LEVEL OF
SOPHISTICATION THAT WAS A LITTLE HIGHER THAN HE WAS PORTRAYING. JESSEN
STATED THAT RAHMAN COULD HAVE BEEN SIMPLY AN INNATELY BRIGHT PERSON.
UNFORTUNATELY, THE INTERROGATION WAS GOING NOWHERE. RAHMAN WAS NOT
EVEN ADMITTING TO HIS NAME DESPITE A PREPONDERANCE OF INFORMATION.
JESSEN NEVER SAW |USE AGGRESSIVE OR HOSTILE INTERROGATION ON HIM. IT
WAS ALL BUSINESSLIKE, BUT IT DIDN'T GO ANYWHERE. JESSEN STATED THAT ONE
TIME HE INTERROGATED RAHMAN BY HIMSELF AND SLAPPED HIM. JESSEN
DESCRIBED IT AS AN INSULT SLAP. JESSEN STATED THAT HE FELT HE LOST MORE
GROUND THAN HE GAINED. JESSEN COMMENTED THAT SOME PEOPLE CAN BE
INTIMIDATED, BUT WITH OTHERS IT SIMPLY BOLSTERS THEIR RESISTANCE. JESSEN AND

_ |MADE THE DECISION AT THAT TIME NOT TO USE THAT TYPE OF TECHNIQUE

WITH RAHMAN. JESSEN AND| | TALKED ABOUT THE FACT THAT RAHMAN
WOULD NEED PHYSICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL DEPRIVATION TO WEAR HIM DOWN SO
HE WOULD HOPEFULLY BE MORE COOPERATIVE. JESSEN MADE SOME SPECIFIC
RECOMMENDATIONS TO NOT AFTER THE FIRST INTERROGATION, AND PUT A
RECOMMENDED PLAN IN A CABLE. JESSEN RECALLED STATING SOMETHING TO THE
EFFECT OF, "IT WASN'T GOING TO HAPPEN FAST, HE IS PHYSICALLY STRONG, HITTING
HIM ISN'T GOING TO DO ANY GOOD. YOU HAVE TO WEAR HIM DOWN PHYSTCALLY
AND PSYCHOLOGICALLY. HAMMER HIM CONSISTENTLY WITH THE FACTS. IT WOULD
TAKE ONE TO SEVERAL MONTHS TO GET HIM TO A LEVEL OF COOPERATION."

JESSEN STATED THAT HE THOUGHT THAT THE SLEEP DEPRIVATION STARTED
RIGHT FROM BEGINNING.
IG R THE G NG COBALT COBALT

JESSEN STATED THAT |DID A GREAT JOB SETTING UP | I
DID NOT HAVE A VETTED PROTOCAL LIKE| | JESSEN SPOKE ABOUT THAT
WITH | AND A FEW PEOPLE IN HIS "FOOD CHAIN." JESSEN SPOKE ABOUT
ESTABLISHING PROTOCOLS TO PROTECT| THE PRISONERS, AND ENSURE THAT
THINGS WENT ACCORDING TO HOYLE. | i o - -
[ | JESSEN USED THE EXAMPLE OF HARD
TAKEDOWNS THAT THEY USE TO SCARE A GUY. JESSEN STATED THAT IT WAS A GOOD
TECHNIQUE, BUT THESE KINDS OF THINGS NEED TO BE WRITTEN DOWN AND
CODIFIED WITH A STAMP OF APPROVAL OR YOU'RE GOING TO BE LIABLE. ALSO, IF YOU
DON'T HAVE PARAMETERS OF WHAT YOU CAN AND CANNOT DO, YOU WILL TEND TO
DRIFT. JESSEN ALSO STATED THAT WE HAVE GUARDS WHO ARE.DOING A

GOCD JOB
[
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COBALT
JESSEN STATED THAT HAD A GOOD COURSE OF ACTION, BUT NOT IN
TERMS OF WRITTEN GUIDELINES. JESSEN STATED THAT HE HAD PLANNED TO DO THAT
FOR | | BUT GOT PULLED ouT BEFORE HE COULD BEGIN. JESSEN STATED THAT

|WAS GOING TO PRODUCE SOME WRITTEN PROTOCOLS. JESSEN STATED THAT HE
ALSO RECOMMENDED THAT THOSE OFFICERS WHO WERE ' IN TRAINING AT _ T
HEADQUARTERS IN INTERROGATION, SHOULD GO TO | _ |[FOR 0JT. — e

WHEN QUESTIONED ABOUT THE TIMING OF RAHMAN'S LOSS QOF CLOTHING,
JESSEN STATED THAT RAHMAN HAD CLOTHING AND DIDN'T HAVE CLOTHING
PERPETUALLY WHILE HE WAS THERE. RAHMAN HAD HIS CLOTHING WHEN HE
ARRIVED, BUT IT WAS LONG THEREAFTER THAT HE DIDN'T HAVE THEM. HE WENT
BACK AND PORTH.| IUSED HIS CLOTHING A FEW TIMES TO TRY TO MANIPULATE
AND MOTIVATE RAHMAN. JESSEN STATED THAT HE JUST COULD NOT RECALL
SPECIFICALLY WHEN HE DID OR DID NOT HAVE HIS CLOTHING. JESSEN RECALLED THAT
HE DIDN'T HAVE CLOTHING MORE THAN HE DID HAVE CLOTHING. USUALLY WHEN HE
DIDN'T HAVE CLOTHING, HE HAD A BLANKET. JESSEN STATED THAT ONCE THE
GUARDS HAD GIVEN RAHMAN A COLD SHOWER AS A DEPRIVATION TECHNIQUE.
JESSEN ADDED THAT "IT WAS PRETTY DARN COLD THERE." RAHMAN WAS SHAKING
A SHOWING THE EARLY STAGES OF HYPOTHERMIA. JESSEN ORDERED THE GUARDS TO
GIVE HIM A BLANKET. JESSEN BELIEVES THAT RAHMAN MAY HAVE BEEN NUDE
WHEN HE CAME FROM RENDITION WHICH IS NOT THAT UNCOMMON. JESSEN RECALLS
THAT RAHMAN WAS WITHOUT CLOTHES VERY EARLY ON IN HIS INCARCERATION.

JESSEN STATED THAT THERE WAS A LOT OF FOCUS ON THIS GUY. HE BECAME
THEIR NUMBER ONE PRIORITY.

JESSEN STATED THAT THE GUARDS WERE VERY FIRM AND DIRECT WITH ALL

PRISONERS. RAHMAN ONCE THREATENED TO KILL THE GUARDS. THE GUARDS

LAUGHED AT HIS THREATS| ‘ |
WHEN JESSEN

ASKED THEM TO PUT A BLANKET ON HIM AFTER HIS COLD SHOWER, THEY DID.

JESSEN STATED THAT AFTER HE LEARNED THAT RAHMAN HAD
THREATENED THE GUARDS, HE DID PAY ATTENTION TO HOW THEY TREATED HIM,

JESSEN STATED THAT WHEN THE GUARDS GOT THE BOP TRAINING, THEY
SEEMED PRETTY SWITCHED ON. WHEN | |GAVE THEM INSTRUCTIONS THEY
ALWAYS CARRIED THEM OUT.

UPON QUERY, JESSEN DESCRIBED A "HARD TAKEDOWN." JESSEN STATED
THAT IF A DETAINEE IS STRONG AND RESILIENT, YOU HAVE TO ESTABLISH CONTROL IN
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SOMEWAY OR YOU'RE NOT GOING TO GET ANYWHERE. IF BOUND BY THE GENEVA
CONVENTION, THIS PERSON WOULD NOT BREAK. YOU HAVE TO TRY DIFFERENT
TECHNIQUES TO GET HIM TO OPEN UP. ONE OF THE TECHNIQUES IS ROUGH,
THREATENING TREATMENT. TREATMENT SHOULD NEVER BE TO THE POINT THAT YOU
HURT SOMEONE PHYSICALLY WHERE YOU INTERFERE WITH YOUR ABILITY TO GET
INFORMATION, BUT YOU WANT TO INSTILL FEAR AND DESPAIR.

JESSEN STATED THAT SOMEONE LIKE RAHMAN IS JUST "TOO DAMN TOUGH."
IF YOU WANT TO SEE IF ITS GOING TO WORK YOU'RE GOING TO HAVE TO USE A
CONSIDERABLE AMOUNT CONTROLLED THREAT, THE INDUCEMENT OF PSYCHOLOGICAL
THREAT, NOT JUST PHYSICAL PAIN. THIS IS DONE BY SCREAMING AND YELLING,
MAKING THREATS, SLAPPING, WALLING, AND HARD TAKEDOWNS.

JESSEN STATED THAT HE WATCHED A HARD TAKEDOWN ON GUL RAHMAN.
IT WAS FORCEFUL, BUT THEY KNEW WHAT THEY WERE DOING. IT WAS DONE BY CIA'S
RENDITIONS TEAM. HE WAS IN HIS CELL, HE WAS INITIALLY CHAINED OVERHEAD FOR
SEVERAL DAYS. AS AN ASIDE, JESSEN STATED THAT HE WAS A VERY TOUGH GUY.
JESSEN STATED THAT HE WENT IN TO SEE HIM AFTER A CONSIDERABLE PERIOD OF
TIME AND HE HAD NOT HAD MUCH TO DRINK. WHEN ASKED IF HE WAS OKAY HE
REPLIED, "FINE." WHEN RAHMAN WAS ASKED IF HE NEEDED ANYTHING, HE SAID,
"NO, I'M FINE." THE RENDITIONS TEAM REHEASED THERE ROLES BEFORE
CONDUCTING THE TAKEDOWN. THE ALL HAD A ROLE AND KNEW WHAT THEY WRERE
GOING TO DO. JESSEN STATED THAT HE WAS WATCHING. | uAD AskED FOR
SUGGESTIONS. JESSEN STATED THAT HE DOESN'T USE THIS AT ANY OF HIS FACILITIES.
JESSEN STATED THAT THEY ENTERED RAHMAN'S CELL SCREAMING AND YELLING FOR
HIM TO "GET DOWN." THEY DRAGGED HIM OUTSIDE AND CUT HIS CLOTHES OFF OF
HIM. THEY SECURED HIM WITH MYLAR TAPE AND PUT A HOOD OVER HIS HEAD.
THEY RAN HIM UP AND DOWN THE LONG CORRIDOR ADJACENT TO HIS CELL. THEY
SLAPPED HIM AND PUNCHED HIM SEVERAL TIMES. ALTHOUGH IT WAS OBVIOUS
THAT THEY WERE NOT TRYING TO HIM HIM AS HARD AS THEY COULD, IT WAS
SOMETIMES PRETTY FORCEFUL. A COUPLE OF TIMES A HE STUMBLED AND WAS
DRAGGED ALONG THE GROUND. HE HAD ABRASIONS ON HIS HEAD AND LEG. HE
LOOKED LIKE HE HAD RECEIVED A "HARD TAKEDOWN' WHEN IT WAS OVER. HE
HAD CRUSTY CONTUSIONS ON HIS FACE, LEG, AND HANDS. NOTHING THAT REQUIRED
TREATMENT. HE WAS PLACED BACK IN HIS CELL. ~ Imay HAVE SAID
SOMETHING TO HIM.| -

| THIS HAPPENED EARLY, AFTER ONLY 2-3
 INTERROGATIONS.
i’ |  JESSEN STATED THAT THE USE OF SLEEP DEPRIVATION WITH RAHMAN
STARTED .

VERY EARLY. THE SLEEP DEPRIVATION WAS CONSISTENT POR THE FIRST FEW DAYS. HE
WAS CHAINED TO THE OVERHEAD BAR IN HIS CELL. HE WAS WITHOUT HIS CLOTHS

MORE THAN HE WAS WITH THEM. WE GAVE HIM SOME CLOTHS AFTER HE

ADMITTED HE WAS RAHMAN. PEOPLE CAN GO HUNDREDS OF HOURS WITH SLEEP
DEPRIVATION AND NOT HAVE ILL EFFECTS. IT WEAKENS YOUR ABILITY TO RESIST AND
MUSTER THAT ENERGY TO FIGHT BACK AGAINST WHAT IS GOING ON. IT'S A GREAT
TECHNIQUE TO USE AND DOESN'T HURT ANYONE. FEAR OF THE UNKNOWN, SLEEP
DEPRIVATION, WITH A FRIENDLY APPROACH MIXED IN ARE THE BEST TECHNIQUES.

YOU CAN USE THIS ALMOST INDEFINITELY AND NOT HURT ANYONE. STANDING WITH
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YOUR HANDS CUFFED OVER A BAR, YOU CAN'T DO THAT FOREVER. THEY DIDN'T
LEAVE RAHMAN CHAINED TO THE OVERHEAD BAR TOO LONG, THEY WOULD LET HIM
DOWN. SOME DAYS | | INTERROGATED RAHMAN TWICE A DAY, SOME DAYS
ONCE, AND SOME DAYS NOT AT ALL. _|HAD A LOT OR WORK ON HIS PLATE. HE
WAS RUNNING | ) |
HE WAS COMPLETELY SNOWED UNDER WITH WORK. | WOULD DO WHAT HE
COULD. THAT'S WHY WE RECOMMENDED THAT| -

/SO WE COULD HAVE MULTIPLE PEOPLE WORK ON SOME OF
THE PRISONERS ALL THE TIME.

JESSEN STATED THAT RAHMAN WOULD HAVE LOST HIS CLOTHES AND DIAPER
AT OUR DIRECTION. THE GUARDS WERE NOT DOING THINGS ON THEIR OHN THEY

WERE VERY ATTENTIVE TO WHAT| | TOLD THEM TO Do.|
JESSEN DESCRIBED | AS VERY BRIGHT AND MOTIVATED. HE HAS GOOD
INTUITION AND HIS INTERROGATION SKILLS ARE GETTING BETTER. HE SET UP | ‘ COBALT

IN A GOOD WAY. HE WAS DOING A GOOD JOB WITH THE GUARD FORCE AND WAS

VERY LEVEL HEADED. HE DID NOT DO THINGS IN A REACTIVE WAY-HE IS VERY
MEASURED. JESSEN SAID HE WAS THE GUY WITH ALL THE TRICKS BUT HE COULD TELL
THAT| |WAS RUNNING ALL OF HIS SUGGESTIONS THROUGH HIS "BULLSHIT FILTER."
FOR

AN MVT FACILITY, THE ATMOSPHERE WAS VERY GOOD. NASTY, BUT SAFE. FOR

' SOMEONE WHO HAD NEVER BEEN INVOLVED IN ANYTHING LIKE THIS BEFORE, JESSEN

SAID HE DID NOT SEE ANY HICCUPS IN SECURITY OR PRISONER SAFETY. JESSEN
QUIPPED THAT THEY CHECKED PEOPLE MORE THOROUGHLY AT THE PRISON THAN
THEY DID TO GET ON THE STATION COMPOUND. o | THE GUARD
COMMANDER, SEEMED TO BE AN INTELLIGENT AND MOTIVATED PERSON. HE

SEEMED TO WORK WELL WITH | JESSEN SAYS HE TOLD|

GOOD JOB PUTTING THINGS TOGETHER.

J JESSEN SAID THERE WERE SOME WEAKNESSES AT THE FACILITY. JESSEN

BELIEVED THAT YOU NEEDED SOME DISINTERESTED PARTY IN THERE WHOSE JOB IT

WAS TO WATCH THE PEOPLE DOING THEIR WORK. YOU NEED TO ESTABLISH
OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES FOR EVERYTHING. YOU HAVE TO DEVELOP WRITTEN
PROCEDURES FOR HOW OFTEN THEY GET WATER, THE TEMPERATURE OF THE FACILITY,
HOW LOUD THE NOISE WILL BE. THE GUARD FORCE HAS TO HAVE WRITTEN
PROCEDURES ON HOW TO HANDLE AND MOVE PEOPLE. YOU GOT TO HAVE

CAMERAS TO MONITOR PEOPLE (YOU CAN MONITOR PEOPLE IN THE DARK.) YOU

HAVE TO HAVE VIDEC COVERAGE IN THE INTERROGATION ROOMS. YOU HAVE TO BE
ABLE TO EXPLAIN EVERY PHYSICAL PRESSURE YOU USE IN GENERAL TERMS, AND
WHEN IT CAN BE USED, YOU HAVE TO TRAIN PEOPLE TO USE THEM, THEN HAVE
QVERSIGHT OVER THE PEOPLE WHO USE THEM. YOU HAVE TO DO ANNUAL STATUS
CHECKS OF THE PRACTICES TO ENSURE THEY ARE IN LINE WITH THE WRITTEN
PROCEDURES AND THAT THERE HAS BEEN NOD RIFT. THERE HAS TO BE A MEDICAL
PERSON ON STAFF AND ON CALL. HE SHOULD MAKE ROUTINE VISITS TO THE PRISON.

YOU NEED TO PROTECT YOUR PEOPLE AND HAVE ADEQUATE STAFFING.
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RAHMAN ADMISSION OF HIS IDENTITY WAS A COMPROMISE. HE KNEW HE
WAS IN TROUBLE OVER HIS IDENTITY. JESSEN BELIEVED THAT RAHMAN DECIDED
THAT SINCE WE HAD OVERWHELMING EVIDENCE THAT HE COULD ADMIT HIS
IDENTITY, IMPROVE HIS CONDITIONS, BUT STILL KEEP THE THINGS THAT WERE
IMPORTANT TO HIM A SECRET. IT WAS AN INTERROGATION BREAKTHROUGH, BUT
RAHMAN HAD NOT BROKEN DOWN. JESSEN BELIEVES THAT WITHOUT THE PRESSURES
THAT HAD BEEN EXERTED ON HIM, HE WOULD NOT HAVE MADE THE ADMISSION.

JESSEN STATED THAT HE INTERROGATED RAHMAN TWICE BY HIMSELF AND

TWO OR THREE OTHER TIMES WITH [ gIm MITCHELL, ANOTHER IC PSYCHOLOGIST
ALSO INTERROGATED HIM ONCE.

RAHMAN APPEARED TO BE HEALTHY, FATIGUED, COLD, AND HE KNEW HOW
TO USE PHYSICAL PROBLEMS OR DURESS AS A RESISTANCE TOOL. JESSEN STATED THAT
THEY ONCE TRIED A PRAGMATIC APPROACH WITH RAHMAN BUT IT DIDN'T WORK.
HE WAS STILL RESISTING WITH GREAT ENERGY.

JESSEN STATED THAT THERE WERE HEATERS PRESENT IN THE HOUSING AREA
WHEN HE WAS WORKING ON RAHMAN. WHEN JESSEN FIRST ARRIVED ]
WAS IN THE 60'S DURING THE DAY, BUT WOULD DROP INTO THE 40'S AT NIGHT.
HOWEVER, PRIOR TO HIS DEPARTURE IT FROZE AT NIGHT A COUPLE OF TIMES. THE
PRISON WAS ALWAYS A LITTLE COOL BECAUSE IT WAS DARK. WHEN YOU ARE NOT

MOVING IT IS WORSE.

‘ IN CLOSING, JESSEN STATED THAT HE WOULD WORK WITH |
ANYTIME,
ANYDAY .

|SHOULD BE MADE PART OF THE LEAD HVT ELEMENT.
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TOT: |Nov 02 ALEC 190864
SBSECRET
) ALEC 190864
SUBJECT: RENDITION OF GUL RAHMAN |
\ ‘ '

\ |
|
i

TEXT:

REGARDING NEED TO RENDER GUL RAHMAN

3. AS STATION IS WELL AWARE, THE PRISONER ABD
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AL- ({MANAN)), WHO APPEARS TO BE IDENTIFIABLE WITH GUL VARIANT GHUL
((RAHMAN) ), HAS BEEN LESS THAN COOPERATIVE DURING DEBRIEFING
SESSIONS, AND INDEED, APPEARS DETERMINED TO KEEP HIS S__E_CRE’I‘S,!

WE
THEREFORE CONCUR WITH STATION'S EFFORTS TO ELICIT FROM GL‘IL RAHMAN
INFORMATION REGARDING HIS INVOLVEMENT WITH AL-QA'IDA OPERATIVES
AND HIS KNOWLEDGE OF ANY OPERATIONAL PLANNING. ABOVE SAID,
REQUEST THAT STATION | | REQUEST THAT GUL
RAHMAN BE | T emEpaRmD ¥oR RENDITION
~ |so THAT mvTI INTERROGATORS CAN QUICKLY OUTLINE AND

IMPLEMENT AN INTERROGATION PLAN TO BEST EXTRACT THIS INFORMATION.

END OF MESSAGE SECRET
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DATE:| |NOV 02

TO: ALEC

SUBJECT: EYES ONLY - FOR CTC/UBL - MENTAL STATUS EXAMINATION AND RECOMMENDED
INTERROGATION PLAN FOR GUL RAHMAN

i
|
|
SUBJECT: EYES ONLY - FOR CTC/UBL - MENTAL STATUS EXAMINATION AND
RECOMMENDED INTERROGATION PLAN FOR GUL RAHMAN

TEXT:

1. ACTION REQUIRED: PLEASE SEND INTERROGATION TEAM PROPQOSED
REF B, PER PARA 5.
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COBALT

2. GUL RAHMAN (SUBJECT) ARRIVED AT ~ oN| |NOVEMBER.
SUBJECT DEMONSTRATED A MARKEDLY RIGID AND INTRACTABLE RESISTANCE
POSTURE FROM THE START. SUBJECT PROVIDED A NAME OTHER THAN HIS OWN
AND STATED HE WOULD COOPERATE WHILE REFUSING TO PROVIDE ANY FURTHER
INFORMATION. FROM THE OUTSET IT WAS APPARENT SUBJECT WAS USING A
RATHER SOPHISTICATED RESISTANCE SKILLS. HE IS PHYSICALLY AND MENTALLY
STRONG AND APPARENTLY DETERMINED TO CONTINUE HIS RESISTANCE STANCE

WITHOUT COOPERATION. ON THE[ | OF NOVEMBER HVTI | |CONDUCTED A
PSYCHOLOGICAL CAPTIVITY ASSESSMENT ON THE SUBJECT. PLEASE SEE RESULTS
BELOW:

3. SUBJECT WAS ORIENTED X 3 NOTWITHSTANDING THE ENVIRONMENTAL
PRESSURES OF HIS CAPTIVITY SETTING. HE WAS ABLE TO ACCURATELY
IDENTIFY HIS CIRCUMSTANCES IN TERMS OF TIME AND LOCATION OF HIS
CAPTURE. HE ACCURATELY REMEMBERED THE INDIVIDUALS HE WAS CAPTURED
WITH. WHILE HE WAS SLOW TO RESPOND TC SOME QUESTIONS IT APPEARED THIS
WAS A COMBINATION OF HIS FATIGUE AND ACTIVE RESISTANCE. SUBJECT WAS
ABLE TO ACCURATELY NAME THE MEMBERS OF HIS FAMILY, THEIR AGES AND
BIRTH LOCATIONS. QUESTIONS WHICH WERE NON SENSITIVE AND CONVENIENT
FOR HIM TO RESPOND TO, IN TERMS OF HIS RESISTANCE POSTURE, WERE
ANSWERED QUICKLY AND ACCURATELY. SENSITIVE QUESTIONS YIELDED STALLING
AND PREVARICATION. THROUGHOUT THIS EVALUATION AND IN THE 6

INTERROGATION SESSIONS IN WHICH HVTI| |PARTICIPATED, SUBJECT
SHOWED NO SIGNS OF PSYCHOPATHOLOGY. SUBJECT DID FEIGN INCOHERENCE AND
PROFOUND CONFUSION AT TIMES HOWEVER SUBJECT WOULD IMMEDIATELY REVERT
TO A COHERENT DIALOGUE WHEN IT WAS IN HIS INTEREST. SUBJECT IS
ASSESSED TO BE OF ABOVE AVERAGE INTELLIGENCE. GUL RAHMAN IS A
MENTALLY STABLE INDIVIDUAL EXHIBITING EXTRAORDINARY RESILIENCE IN HIS
ABILITY TO WITHSTAND THE VICISSITUDES OF CAPTIVITY AND PERSIST IN AN
EFFECTIVE RESISTANCE POSTURE. THERE IS NO INDICATION HE SUFFERS FROM
ANY PSYCHOPATHOLOGY NOR THAT HE WQULD BE PROFOUNDLY OR PERMANENTLY
AFFECTED BY CONTINUING INTERROGATIONS, TO INCLUDE HVT ENHANCED
MEASURES .

4. INTERROGATION PLAN RECOMMENDATION: BECAUSE OF HIS
REMARKABLE PHYSICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL RESILIENCE AND DETERMINATION TO
PERSIST IN HIS EFFECTIVE RESISTANCE POSTURE EMPLOYING ENHANCED
MEASURES IS NOT THE FIRST OR BEST OPTION TO YIELD POSITIVE
INTERROGATION RESULTS. IN FACT, WITH SUCH INDIVIDUALS, INCREASING
PHYSICAL PRESSURES OFTEN BOLSTERS THEIR RESISTANCE. THE MOST
EFFECTIVE INTERROGATION PLAN FOR GUL RAHMAN IS TO CONTINUE THE
ENVIRONMENTAL DEPRIVATIONS HE IS EXPERIENCING AND INSTITUTE A
CONCENTRATED INTERROGATION EXPOSURE REGIMEN. THIS REGIMEN WOULD
IDEALLY CONSIST OF REPEATED AND SEEMINGLY CONSTANT INTERROGATIONS (18
OUT OF 24 HOURS PER DAY). THESE INTERROGATION SESSIONS SHOULD BE
COORDINATED AND PRESENT WITH THE SAME SET OF KEY SUBJECT AREAS.
INTERROGATORS SHOULD HAVE THE FLEXIBILITY AND INSIGHT TO DEVIATE WITH
THE SUBJECT WHEN HE BEGINS TO "MOVE8 IN A DESIRED DIRECTION. IT WILL
BE THE CONSISTENT AND PERSISTENT APPLICATION OF DEPRIVATIONS (SLEEP
LOSS AND FATIGUE) AND SEEMINGLY CONSTANT INTERROGATIONS WHICH WILL BE
MOST EFFECTIVE IN &WEARING DOWNB THIS SUBJECT,S RESISTANCE

Jessen

Jessen
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POSTURE. IT WILL BE IMPORTANT TO MANAGE THE DEPRIVATIONS SO AS TO
ALLOW THE SUBJECT ADEQUATE REST AND NOURISHMENT SO HE REMAINS
COHERENT AND CAPABLE OF PROVIDING ACCURATE INFORMATION. THE STATION
PHYSICIAN SHOULD COLLABORATE WITH THE INTERROGATION TEAM TO ACHIEVE
THIS OPTIMUM BALANCE. IT IS REASONABLE TO EXPECT 2 WEEKS OR MORE OF
THIS REGIMEN BEFORE SIGNIFICANT MOVEMENT OCCURS.

5. STATION NOTES THAT NEWLY TRAINED HVT INTERROGATORS, PROPOSED
REF B, WOULD BE IDEAL TO IMPLEMENT PARA FOUR SCENARIO. STATION IS
SENDING A SEPARATE CABLE REQUESTING DEPLOYMENT PROPOSED REF B, AND WE
LOOK FORWARD TO WORKING WITH INTERROGATION TEAM ON THIS IMPORTANT
CASE.

END OF MESSAGE SBERET-
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DATE: | |NOV 02

TO:

SUBJECT: EYES ONLY: GUL RAHMAN - REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE IN INTERROGATION

CITE| 29626

SUBJECT: EYES ONLY: GUL RAHMAN - REQUEST FOR ASSTSTANCE IN

INTERROGATION

REF: NONE
TEXT:

1. ACTION REQUIRED: |PLEASE COMMENT ON‘
REQUEST TO PRESSURE RAHMAN.

2. GUL ((RAHMAN)) HAS PROVIDEDT }INTERROGATORS NO
INFORMATION TO DATE, AND HE STILL REFUSES TO ADMIT THAT HIS TRUE
IDENTITY IS GUL ((RAHMAN)). ALTHOUGH HE APPEARS SOMEWHAT FATIGUED
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COBALT

RELATIVE TO HIS APPEARANCE UPON ARRIVAL AT‘ HE REMAINS
RESOLUTELY DEFIANT AS INTERROGATORS ATTEMPT TO OBTAIN INFORMATION
FROM HIM. WE BELIEVE THAT PHYSICAL PRESSURE IS UNLIKELY TO CHANGE
RAHMAN'S ATTITUDE, BUT ALTERNATIVE PSYCHOLOGICAL PRESSURES MAY HAVE
MORE SUCCESS.

4. AS GUL RAHMAN HAS A WEALTH OF INFORMATION HE COULD IMPART,
ANY ASSISTANCE| [MAY BE ABLE TO PROVIDE US IN MOVING HIM
TOWARD A DEBRIEFING MODE WOULD BE GREATLY APPRECIATED. |

END OF MESSAGE -SBEERET
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DATE: | INOV 02
CITE | 130211

SUBJECT: EYES ONLY - GUL RAHMAN: CHRONOLOGY OF EVENTS

S—FHERFF| NOV 02

crtel 30211

SUBJECT: EYES ONLY - GUL RAHMAN: CHRONOLOGY OF EVENTS

REF : NONE
TEXT:

1. ACTION REQUIRED: NOTE FOLLOWING CHRONOLOGY OF EVENTS.

COBALT 2. THE FOLLOWING CHRONOLOGY OF EVENTS RELATING TO THE DEATH OF
ENEMY COMBATANT GUL RAHMAN AT‘ ‘FACILITY WAS ASSEMBLED BY
STATION OFFICERS FROM THE ACCOUNTS OF | |PERSONNEL AND
‘ ol

| | GUARDS WHO HAD KNOWLEDGE
RELEVANT TO THIS EVENT.

3. BACKGROUND: GUL RAHMAN WAS BROUGHT TO THE FACILITY ON|
NOVEMBER. HE WAS GIVEN A PHYSICAL EXAMINATION AND ALL HIS PERSONAL
CLOTHES AND EFFECTS REMOVED. HE WAS DRESSED IN STANDARD PRISON GARB
AND PLACED IN A SINGLE CELL. RAHMAN HAD BEEN CONSISTENTLY
UNCOOPERATIVE SINCE ARRIVAL AND DISPLAYED EVIDENCE OF A HIGH LEVEL OF
RESISTANCE TRAINING. HIS DEMEANOR IN THE PRESENCE OF HIS| |
INTERROGATORS WAS EXTREMELY CALM AND CONTROLLED. HOWEVER, RAHMAN'S
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ATTITUDE TOWARDS HIS|  |GUARDS WAS REPORTEDLY VERY DIFFERENT, THE

SENIOR | OFFICER PRESENT AT | INOTIFIED STATION ABOUT ONE
WEEK AGO THAT RAHMAN HAD DIRECTLY THREATENED HIS GUARDS. |
OFFICERS NEVER WITNESSED THIS BEHAVIOR FIRSTHAND). SPECIFICALLY,
RAHMAN REPORTEDLY TOLD THEM THAT HE KNEW THEIR FACES AND THAT HE
WOULD KILL OR HAVE THEM ALL KILLED AFTER HIS RELEASE. AS A RESULT OF
THE PHYSICAL THREAT HE POSED TO HIS GUARDS, HE WAS KEPT CONSISTENTLY
RESTRAINED WITH HAND AND ANKLE RESTRAINTS IN THE CELL HE OCCUPIED BY
HIMSELF.

4. CHRONOLOGY:

A. THE LAST TIME RAHMAN WAS SEEN BY|  |OFFICER
PRIOR TO HIS DEATH WAS| - o /NOV 2002. AT
THAT TIME RAHMAN WAS ASSESSED TO BE IN GOOD OVERALL HEALTH. STATION
NOTED THAT RAHMAN HAD SMALL ABRASIONS ON HIS WRISTS AND ANKLES AS A
RESULT OF THE RESTRAINTS. HIS ANKLE RESTRAINTS WERE LOOSENED AND HIS

HAND RESTRAINTS WERE REMOVED WHEN RAHMAN WAS RETURNED TO HIS CELL.

B. AT | ‘oN[ |NOV 2002, THE| | COMMANDER
TOLD STATION THAT WHEN RAHMAN HAD BEEN GIVEN FOOD AT 1500 LOCAL, HE
HAD THROWN IT, HIS PLATE, HIS WATER BOTTLE AND DEFECATION BUCKET AT
THE GUARDS WHC HAD DELIVERED THE FOOD. STATION REQUESTED THAT THE
’ | COMMANDER TO REPLACE RAHMAN'S HAND RESTRAINTS TO PREVENT
THIS FROM REOCCURRING, OR PREVENT HIM FROM UNDERTAKING ANY OTHER
VIOLENT ACTION.

C. INTERVIEWED SEPARATELY ON | |NOV, EACH OF THE |
GUARDS REPORTED THAT DURING NORMAL CELL CHECKS AT 2200, 2300, 0400,

AND 0800 HOURS ON| |NOV, GUL RAHMAN WAS ALIVE IN HIS CELL.
RAHMAN WAS VISUALLY INSPECTED THROUGH THE DOOR CELL SLOT BUT NO GUARD
ENTERED HIS CELL. | | GUARDS ON THE 0800 CELL CHECK SAID

INDEPENDENTLY THAT RAHMAN WAS DEFINITELY ALIVE, WITH HIS EYES OPEN,
SEATED IN HIS CELL AT 0800 ON| |NoOv.

D. SHORTLY AFTER 1000 HOURS ON| |NOV 2002, STATION
PERSONNEL THEN PRESENT AT THE FACILITY TO CONDUCT AN INTERROGATION OF
ANOTHER INDIVIDUAL WERE NOTIFIED BY | | GUARDS THAT GUL RAHMAN
WAS SLEEPING IN HIS CELL BUT THERE WAS SOME PROBLEM. STATION
OFFICERS WERE ESCORTED TO THE CELL BY THE GUARDS. THESE OFFICERS
REALTZED RAHMAN WAS DECEASED AND THEY SUBSEQUENTLY REQUESTED|
_ THAT STATION MEDIC VISIT THE FACILITY. OFFICERS
REPORTED THAT A SMALL AMOUNT (PALM-SIZED POOL) OF DRIED BLOOD WAS
PRESENT IN AND AROUND THE MOUTH AND NOSE OF SUBJECT. RAHMAN WAS
OBSERVED STILL SHACKLED, AND SLUMPED OVER IN THE SEATED POSITION.

E. AT APPROXIMATELY 1030 HOURS, STATION MEDIC ARRIVED AT THE
LOCATION. THE STATION MEDIC INSPECTED THE BODY AND NOTICED NO
OBVIOUS CONTUSIONS, ABRASIONS, MARKS, SWELLING, OR OTHER INDICATIONS
OF SPECIFIC CAUSE OF DEATH. HE NOTED THAT THE BLOOD IN EVIDENCE WAS
DARK, NOT IN KEEPING WITH A WOUND TO THE NOSE OR MOUTH AREA. THE
MEDIC'S NOTES ON RAHMAN'S CONDITION ARE FILED AT STATION. HIS

COBALT
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ESTIMATION WAS THAT RAHMAN HAD BEEN DEAD LESS THAN A FEW HOURS.

5. PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT: WITHOUT AN AUTOPSYIIT IS NOT
POSSIBLE TO DETERMINE THE CAUSE OF DEATH OF RAHMAN.‘

PLANS ARE TO

PLACE THE BODY IN IMPROVISED COLD STORAGE PENDING DECISION ON
DISPOSITION.

END OF MESSAGE
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DATE : L NOV 02
CITE 36124
SUBJECT: RENDITION OF GUL RAHMAN
---------------------------------------- BODY S UL TLTTTTT PP PEEE
|
|
SECRET| NOV 02
| o
CITE 36124
SUBJECT: RENDITION OF | ' GUL RAHMAN|
|
TEXT:
1. ACTION REQUIRED: lpLs NOTE PERSONAL ITEMS TO BE HELD
FOR GUL RAHMAN
2. [ |
[GUL ( (RAHMAN) )| |SUCCESSFULLY

RENDERED WITHOUT INCIDENT
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BUT NO SECURITY ISSUES/PROBLEMS WERE ENCOUNTERED.

3. APPRECIATE

‘ |PATIENCE
AND PROFESSIONALISM IN EFFECTING A SMOOTH RENDITION.

END OF MESSAGE —SEERPP
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TOT: ~ NOV02 ALEC 191539

ALEC 191539

SUBJECT: EYES ONLY - COURSE OF ACTION FOR FUTURE HANDLING OF

GUL
RAHMAN
|
TEXT:

T — I._ACTION REQUIRED: | IF POSSIBLE TO DO SO BEFORE
PSYCHOLOGIST IC'S AND UPCOMING DEPARTURE ON
ANOTHER OPERATION, REQUEST ONE/BOTH ADMINISTER GUL RAHMAN A
MENTAL
STATUS EXAM AND PROVIDE AN ASSESSMENT ON INTERROGATION
MEASURES

REQUIRED TO RENDER HIM COMPLIANT.

2. HQS/ALEC IS MOTIVATED TO EXTRACT ANY AND ALL OPERATIONAL

Mitchell
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INFORMATION ON AL-QA'IDA AND HEZBI ISLAMI FROM GUL ((RAHMAN)).
WE

NOTE PER REF THAT IT IS THE ASSESSMENT OF THE DEBRIEFERS THAT
RAHMAN MAY NEED TO BE SUBJECTED TO ENHANCED INTERROGATION
MEASURES

TO INDUCE HIM TO COMPLY. DUE TO THE FACT RAHMAN LIKELY
POSSESSES .

. 'INFORMATION
REGARDING -

THREATS TO U.S. INTERESTS AND THOSE OF OUR ALLIES, WE RATE

ACHIEVING RAHMAN'S COOPERATION TO BE OF GREAT IMPORTANCE. WE

WOULD LIKE TO WORK QUICKLY TO CREATE CIRCUMSTANCES IN WHICH

HE

WILL COOPERATE.
Jessen Mitchell
3. THEREFORE, WE REQUEST THAT I/C| -AND/OH ]
ADMINISTER GUL RAHMAN A MENTAL STATUS (PHYSCHOLOGICAL
ASSESSMENT)

EXAM AND PROVIDE AN ASSESSMENT ON WHAT SPECIFIC
INTERROGATION

MEASURES MAY BE REQUIRED TO RENDER HIM COMPLIANT. PLEASE
SEND

YOUR EVALUATION TO HQS WHERE DETERMINATION OF COURSES OF
ACTION

WILL BE MADE. REALIZE THEY WILL BE DEPARTING SHORTLY ON
ANOTHER

OPERATION; WE HOPE IT IS POSSIBLE TO DO THIS.

 END OF MESSAGE SEERET-
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SE—€R BT
CITE 35807
:
SUBJECT: RESULTS OF (02 INITIAL INTERROGATIONS
_ ) POSSIBLE
IDENTIFICATION OF GUL RAHMAN
2. AS REPORTED REF B, DURING THE EARLY MORNING HOURS OF|  |oCT

02| ICONDUCTED A RAID

|DETAILS FOLLOW.

3. ON | 02 A ‘INTERROGATION TEAM
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INTERROGATED | INDIVIDUALS WHO WERE DETAINED

[IT APPEARS THAT ONE INDIVIDUAL, IDENTIFIED BY THE NAME (('ABD
AL-MANAN)), MAY IN FACT BE GUL ((RAHMAN)) .

i (('ABD AL-MANAN)), AKA (('ABD AL-HAKIM)), POSSIBLE
IDENTIFIABLE WITH GUL ((RAHMAN)) :

Salim v. Mitchell - United States Bates #001069
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4. PLANS: AT THIS POINT, STATION WILL WORK TO POSITIVELY
IDENTIFY GHUL RAHMAN,
\

STATION PLANS FOR FOLLOW-UP
INTERROGATION SESSIONS WITH 'ABD AL-MANAN ASAP. REGARDS.

END OF MESSAGE SECRET

||
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Date: 200211 |
TO:

FROM :

COBALT

SUBJECT: EYES ONLY - NON-COMPLIANCE OF GUL RAHMAN

CITE 29520

'~ SUBJECT: EYES ONLY - NON-COMPLIANCE OF GUL RAHMAN|

REF: NONE COBALT
TEXT:
1. ACTION REQUIRED: HQS AND ALEC MAY WISH TO CONSIDER PLANNTNG

FOR ALTERNATIVE ENHANCED INTERROGATION MEASURES FOR GUL RAHMAN, AND
THE RELOCATION OF GUL RAHMAN THIS MAY REQUIRE.

2. SUMMARY: ON|  |NOV 2002, GUL ((RAHMAN)) WAS
INTERROGATED BY | ~ |awp 170
PSYCHOLOGIST | RAHMAN STEADFASTLY REFUSED TO PROVIDE HIS TRUE

NAME AND DENIED MEETING OR KNOWING HEKMATYAR. AFTER 48 HOURS
INTERROGATORS HAVE MADE NO SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS WITH RAHMAN. 1IN THE
OPINION OF BOTH INTERROGATORS, THE PHYSIOLOGICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL
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PRESSURES WHICH CAN BE BROUGHT TO BEAR ON RAHMAN OVER THE NEXT

SEVERAL DAYS AT‘ AA,AJWILL BE UNLIKELY TO MAKE HIM DIVULGE
SIGNIFICANT INFORMATION. END SUMMARY.

3. | - | 1nTERROGATIONS
CONDUCTED TO DATE RAHMAN HAS CLAIMED THAT HIS NAME IS ABDUL ( (MANAN))
AND THAT HE IS NOT GUL RAHMAN. HE HAS CONTINUED TO DENY THAT HE IS
GUL RAHMAN DESPITE BEING CONFRONTED WITH HIS PHOTO IDENTIFICATION
CARD | )

N - DESPITE 48 HOURS OF SLEEP DEPRIVATION, AUDITORY
OVERLOAD, TOTAL DARKNESS, ISOLATION, A COLD SHOWER, AND ROUGH
TREATMENT, RAHMAN REMAINS STEADFAST IN MAINTAINING HIS HIGH
RESISTANCE POSTURE AND DEMEANOR. INTERROGATORS WILL CONTINUE TO KEEP
PRESSURE UPON RAHMAN, BUT IT IS THEIR ASSESSMENT THAT HIS ATTITUDE 1S
UNLIKELY TO SOON CHANGE.

4. TO PUT RAHMAN'S BEHAVIOR IN CONTEXT, STATION NOTES THAT COBALT
WHILE THE OTHER DETAINEES WHICH HAVE BEEN BROUGHT INTO L47 |HAVE
DROPPED MOST OF THEIR RESISTANCE WITHIN 48 HOURS, RAHMAN'S ATTITUDE
REMAINS RELATIVELY UNCHANGED FROM HIS ATTITUDE UPON ARRIVAL. RAHMAN
HAS MAINTAINED HIS HIGH RESISTANCE POSTURE DESPITE A WEAK COVER
STORY, AND INTERROGATORS CONFRONTING HIM WITH HIS OWN DOCUMENTS AND
THEIR KNOWLEDGE THAT HIS CO-DETAINEES ALREADY GAVE UP HIS IDENTITY.
HIS RESISTANCE POSTURE SUGGESTED A SOPHISTICATED LEVEL OF RESISTANCE
TRAINING INCLUDING THESE SPECIFIC EXAMPLES:

A. REMAINED STEADFAST IN OUTRIGHT DENIALS (IGNORED OBVIQUS
FACTS) :

B. WAS UNRESPONSIVE TO PROVOCATION

C. CLAIMED INABILITY TO THINK DUE TO CONDITIONS (COLD)
COMPLAINED ABOUT POOR TREATMENT
COMPLAINED ABOUT THE VIOLATION OF HIS HUMAN RIGHTS
REMAINED CONSISTENTLY UNEMOTIONAL, CALM, AND COMPOSED

G. BLATANTLY LIED WHILE ATTEMPTING TO APPEAR SINCERE IN HIS
DESIRE TO COOPERATE

H. CONSISTENTLY USED HIS COVER STORY

I. DISPLAYED NO ANXIETY (CALMLY PICKED AT HIS SKIN/NAILS DURING
CONFRONTATIONS WITH DAMNING EVIDENCE AGAINST HIM)

J. WAS UNFAZED BY PHYSICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL CONFRONTATIONS

b I =

5. BASED UPON AVAILABLE INFORMATION, STATION BELIEVES SUBJECT IS
LIKELY WITHHOLDING SIGNIFICANT THREAT RELATED INFORMATION IN ADDITION

~ TO SIGNIFICANT INTELLIGENCE INFORMATION ON AL-QA'IDA AND HEKMATYAR.
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UNFORTUNATELY, STATION WISHES TO APPRISE HEADQUARTERS THAT WE BELIEVE

IT IS UNLIKELY RAHMAN WILL CHANGE HIS RESISTANCE POSTURE AND BEGIN TO

COOPERATE IN THE NEAR FUTURE. OVER TIME THE AMBIENT PRESSURES CF

ISOLATION, SLEEP AND SENSORY DEPRIVATION MAY BEGIN TO WEAR ON RAHMAN
BUT A QUICK CHANGE IN HIS LEVEL OF COOPERATION IS HIGHLY UNLIKELY.

END OF MESSAGE
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SECRET NOV 02

SUBJECT: EYES ONLY - GUL RAHMAN ADMITS HIS IDENTITY
REF: NONE
TEXT:

1. ACTION REQUIRED: NONE, FYI.

2. SUMMARY: STATION INTERROGATION TEAM--INCLUDING}

| 1/¢] | AND HVT OFFICER
*MET WITH GUL ((RAHMAN)) AFTERNOON OF INOVEMBER AT

Jessen
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COBALT

B | RAHMAN SPENT THE DAYS SINCE HIS LAST SESSION WITH STATION
OFFICERS IN COLD CONDITIONS WITH MINIMAL FOOD AND SLEEP. RAHMAN

APPEARED SOMEWHAT INCOHERENT FOR PORTIONS OF THIS SESSION, BUT WAS

COMPLETELY LUCID BY MID SESSION. WE BELIEVE HE MOVED HIS INTERNAL

LINE OF RESISTANCE FOR ACCEPTABLE ADMISSIONS FORWARD SLIGHTLY.

STATION IS ENCOURAGED BY THIS TURN OF EVENTS AND INTENDS TO HAVE

ANOTHER SESSION WITH RAHMAN ON| | NOVEMBER.

3. ADMISSIONS: RAHMAN MADE SEVERAL ADMISSIONS AND STATEMENTS
DURING THE | |NOVEMBER SESSION THAT ARE WORTHY OF NOTE. HOWEVER, IT
MUST BE TAKEN INTO CONSIDERATION THAT RAHMAN WAS SOMEWHAT CONFUSED
DUE TO FATIGUE AND DEHYDRATION FOR PORTIONS OF THIS INTERVIEW.

A. RAHMAN STATED HIS FAMILY AND SOME FRIENDS CALL HIM "ABDUL
MANAN, " BUT OTHER PEOPLE KNOW HIM AS "GUL RAHMAN." HE STATED HE IS A
CIRCA 30 YEAR OLD AFGHAN FROM LOWGAR PROVINCE, POL-E-ALAM REGION,
KOLANGAR VILLAGE.

B. RAHMAN STATED THAT HE WAS ARRESTED

- RAHMAN WOULD
NOT EXPLAIN WHAT HE WAS DOING | -
‘ -HIS OBVIOUSLY REHEARSED

REPLY.

C. RAHMAN CONTINUED TO PRODUCE HIS REHEARSED RESPONSES ABOUT
HIS RELATIONSHIP WITH BAHIR AND GULBUDDIN ( (HEKMATYAR) ) -- STATING
THAT HE HAD NOT SEEN HEKMATYAR IN 12-13 YEARS AND WAS BAHIR'S DRIVER
FOR SIX MONTHS ENDING SEVEN MONTHS AGO. '

D. RAHMAN STATED THAT HE HAD NO JOB IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO HIS
ARREST BUT THAT HE WAS A DRIVER AND DID OTHER MANUAL JOBS IN LOWGAR,
KABUL, AND PESHAWAR. HE STATED AT ONE POINT THAT HE WOULD DELIVER
MESSAGES AND RUN ERRANDS FOR HEZB-I ISLAMI, WHICH HE DESCRIBED AS HIS
PARTY.

G. RAHMAN ADMITTED HE HAD FOUGHT IN THE JIHAD WITH HIS
BROTHER AND IT WAS BECAUSE OF HIS MARTYRED OLDER BROTHER THAT HE
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BECAME INVOLVED WITH HIG.

H. RAHMAN ACKNOWLEDGED THAT THE LARGE WOUND ON HIS ARM WAS A
GUNSHOT WOUND|

| HE SAID HIS ARM

TOOK FOUR MONTHS TO HEAL. |

4. ASSESSMENT: RAHMAN WAS FINALLY SHOWING THE RESULTS OF HIS

STAY AT[ | DURING THIS SESSION. WHILE HE WAS STILL CLEARLY

RESISTING, WE BELIEVE HE MAY HAVE CHOSEN TO COMPROMISE SOMEWHAT IN
EXCHANGE FOR IMPROVED CONDITIONS. HOWEVER, IT WAS ALSO POSSIBLE THAT
RAHMAN WAS SO FATIGUED THAT HE WAS UNABLE TO CONSISTENTLY STAY WITH
HIS COVER STORY EVEN IF HE WISHED TO DO SO. DURING PORTIONS OF
INTERROGATION, RAHMAN WAS CONFUSED AS TO HIS LOCATION, AND THE
PASSAGE OF TIME. AT OTHER TIMES HE WOULD FORGET WHAT HE HAD BEEN
ASKED AND C/O WOULD HAVE TO RECAPTURE HIS ATTENTION. IT IS DIFFICULT
TO KNOW PRECISELY HOW MUCH OF THIS BEHAVIOR WAS FEIGNED AND HOW MUCH
WAS A RESULT OF HIS PHYSICAL/PSYCHOLOGICAL CONDITION; HOWEVER, I/C
[ | IMPRESSION WAS THAT HE CONTINUES TO USE "HEALTH AND
WELFARE" BEHAVIORS AND COMPLAINTS AS A MAJOR PART OF HIS RESISTANCE
POSTURE. AFTER THE SESSION RAHMAN WAS AFFORDED SOME IMPROVEMENT IN
HIS CONDITIONS. INTERROGATORS PLAN TO REINTERVIEW RAHMAN ON
NOVEMBER.

END OF MESSAGE SEERET
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MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD

FROM:

CHIEF, COUNTERINTELLIGENCE EVALUATION BRANCH
COUNTERESPIONAGE GROUP
COUNTERINTELLIGENCE CENTER

SUBJECT : RAHMAN DEATH INVESTIGATION - INTERVIEW OF‘

1. ON| | NOVEMBER 2002, 7 0GC, AND I
INTERVIEWED‘ ‘REGARDING THE DEATH OF GUL RAHMAN.
1 IS AN OPERATIONS OFFICER| |aND 1s RESPONSIBLE FOR

GUARD FORCE

COORDINATING THE DEBRIEFING ACTIVITIES OF STATION PERSONNEL |
! COBALT

FACILITY KNOWN TO STATION PERSONNEL AS

Salim v. Mitchell - United States Bates #001078
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| |THE PRISONERS ARE FED ONCE A DAY

[ | ALTHOUGH THE PRISONERS ONLY

- RECEIVE ONE MEAL, IT IS A LARGE MEAL. THE FOOD IS BROUGHT TO THE PRISONERS
BY THE GUARDS.| STATED THAT THE GUARDS DO NOT TALK TO THE PRISONERS.
ALTHOUGH THE GUARDS RESPOND TO | |TASKING, NOTHING PREVENTS THEM
FROM ACTING INDEPENDENTLY TOWARD THE PRISONERS. IF THE GUARDS NOTICED
THAT A PRISONER WAS COLD, NOTHING PREVENTED THEM FROM GIVING HIM A

BLANKET.
COBALT

3. | STATED THAT GUL RAHMAN WAS BROUGHT TO| ~ Jerrea ]
NOVEMBER 2002. RAHMAN WAS A PASHTUN MEMBER OF HIZBI ISLAMI. THE
GUARDS DID NOT KNOW THE IDENTITY OF RAHMAN, BUT THEY DID KNOW THAT COBALT
RAHMAN AND OTHER PRISONERS CONFINED TO| WERE VERY BAD,
DANGEROUS PEOPLE. TERRORISTS. THE GUARDS ALSO KNEW THAT THEY HAD TO BE

COBALT

FAREFUL AROUND THEM. A FEW DAYS AFTER HIS ARRIVAL AT | [

TOLD
THE GUARDS THAT HE HAD SEEN THEIR FACES AND WOULD FIND AND KILL THEM AFTER
HIS RELEASE. ON THE AFTERNOON OF THE | |NOVEMBER, RAHMAN THREW HIS FOOD
AND WATER AT THE GUARDS AND WAS SCREAMING AT THEM.| STATED THAT
THE PRISONERS ARE FED ONE LARGE MEAL EACH DAY. SINCE RAHMAN THREW HIS
FOOD ON THE | |NOVEMBER, HIS PREVIOUS MEAL WOULD HAVE BEEN ON |
NOVEMBER. RAHMAN WAS THE ONLY PRISONER WHO HAD GIVEN THE GUARDS ANY
TROUBLE .

4. FIRST LEARNED OF RAHMAN'S DEATH AT MID-MORNING ON | |
NOVEMBER 2002. ACCORDING To| | DOC INFORMED HIM THAT RAHMAN HAD
DIED. | COULD NOT RECALL SPECIFICALLY WHAT DOC TOLD HIM.| |STATED
THAT HE IMMEDIATELY INFORMED COS OF RAHMAN'S DEATH. { STATED THAT
HE TRAVELED TO | | APPROXIMATELY FOUR HOURS AFTER RAHMAN WAS
DISCOVERED. | |SAID HE QUESTIONED THE GUARDS ABOUT WHAT HAPPENED
AND CABLED HEADQUARTERS WITH HIS FINDINGS. | STATED THAT ACCORDING
TO THE GUARDS, THEY MADE THEIR ROUTINE ROUNDS TO CHECK ON THE PRISONERS AT COBALT
0400 AND 0800. THE BUREAU OF PRISONS HAD BEEN AT [ THE ' PREVIOUS
WEEK TO ASSIST IN TRAINING THE GUARDS. ESTABLISHING A SCHEDULE OF ROUNDS WAS
ONE OF THEIR OBJECTIVES, FOR PURPOSES OF ACCOUNTABILITY. THE GUARDS STATED
THAT DURING THESE CHECKS, RAHMAN WAS SEATED UPRIGHT AND HIS NECK WAS
STRAIGHT. | STATED THAT AT 1000, | GUARDS MADE THE ROUNDS AGAIN
AND FOUND RAHMAN DEAD. AT THE TIME OF THE DISCOVERY, SEVERAL OF OUR COBALT
OFFICERS WERE PRESENT AT THEY WERE
APPROACHED BY THE GUARDS WHO SAID THAT ONE OF THE PRISONERS WAS LYING ‘
ON THE FLOOR. | . ) | LOBALT

| AFTER THE BODY WAS DISCOVERED, CALLED|

NO PHOTOGRAPHS WERE TAKEN OF THE BODY PRIOR TO ITS REMOVAL FROM THE CELL.

COBALT

5., ‘ STATED THAT WHEN RAHMAN WAS FOUND, HIS HANDS AND FEET

WERE SHAE:KLED TOGETHER AND HE WAS WEARING A SWEATSHIRT WITH NO
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BOTTOMS . | ‘STATED THAT SOMETIMES THE BOTTOMS WERE TAKEN FROM
UNCOOPERATIVE PRISONERS BECAUSE IT WAS AN BMBAR.RASSMENT TO MUSLIMS.

| |STATED THAT HE WAS LAYING ON HIS RIGHT SIDE. | STATED THAT HE HAD
A NUMBER OF SCRATCHES ON HIS BODY AND FACE, AS WELL ;S AN ABRASION ON HIS
SHOULDER.‘ | STATED THAT THESE MINOR INJURIES LOOKED TO HAVE BEEN

INCURRED MORE THAN 10 DAYS BEFORE HIS DEATH AS THEY CLEARLY HAD BEGUN TO
HEAL.

6. | | STATED THAT THERE WERE NO UNUSUAL SMELLS IN THE CELL WHEN
HE ARRIVED AND DID NOT HEAR ANYONE DISCUSS ANY UNUSUAL SMELLS. ‘ |
STATED THAT HE DID NOT NOTICE ANYTHING OTHER THAN THE CELL SMELLED OF URINE
FROM THE BUCKET 'I'H.AT WAS KEPT THERE FOR THAT PURPOSE. I

A - l |STATED THAT HE DID FIND IT
UNUSUAL THAT WHEN RAHMAN WAS DISCOVERED, THE GUARD COMMANDER WAS

NOT PRESENT AT THE FACILITY. HE WAS TOLD THAT THE COMMANDER WAS AT | |
|

J

7. |STATED THAT IN THE DAYS PRECEDING RAHMAN'S DEATH, THE
TEMPERATURE WAS COLD| | IT WAS BETWEEN 32-34 DEGREES. | |
ADDED THAT THERE IS NO INSULATION IN THE BUILDING AND NO THERMOMETERS.

8. THE EVENING OF RAHMAN'S DEATH
BROUGHT A FREEZER WHERE RAHMAN COULD BE S'I'OR.ED UNTIL A DETERMINATION
WAS MADE REGARDING WHAT TO DO WITH HIM.

9. l \WAS ASKED TO SHOW US THE CELL RAHMAN WAS HOUSED IN.
‘STATED THAT THE CELL HAD BEEN FIXED UP SINCE RAHMAN WAS REMOVED
AND NOW HAS CARPETING ON THE FLOOR AND SOME FURNITURE. ‘S’I‘A‘I’ED THAT
THEY WERE TRYING TO TURN IT INTO A MODEL CELL SO THEY COULD SHOW PRISONERS
WHAT LIFE COULD BE LIKE IF THEY COOPERATED.

10“’ |WAS ASKED IF THE GUARDS COULD HEAR THE PRISONERS IF THEY
BEGAN YELLING FROM THEIR CELL. | | STATED THAT GIVEN THE MUSIC THAT WAS
PLAYING AND THE SEPARATION OF THE PRISON INTO TWO PARTS; ONE WHERE THE
PRISONERS WERE KEPT AND THE OTHER WHERE PRISONERS WERE INTERROGATED AND
GUARDS CONGREGATED, IT WAS UNLIKELY THAT THE GUARDS WOULD BE ABLE TO
HEAR THEM. EVEN IF THEY DID HEAR THEM, WASN'T SURE THE GUARDS
WOULD RESPOND. COBALT

Il. WAS ASKED TO DRAW A DIAGRAM OF |WHICH HE
PROVIDED THE NEXT DAY.

DECEMBER 2002

MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD
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ﬁNTERVIEW OF DECEMBER 2002
| J

[THLS INTERVIEW WAS| IN AN OFFICE
‘ ]
DID QUESTIONING, AUGMENTED BY A FEW QUESTIONS FROM | IN THE
TEXT BELOW, BRACKETS INDICATE EITHER QUESTIONS/CONCERNS ABOUT THE CORRECTNESS
OF THIS NOTES- :
BASED SUMMARY, OR TO ADD EXPLANATORY COMMENTS, INCLUDING TEXT THAT WAS IMPLIED
IN
CONTEXT OF THE DISCUSSION.]

THERE IS NO NEW INFORMATION, AT LEAST NOTHING THAT HAS COME TO
ATTENTION, REGARDING
THE DEATH OF RAHMAN, SINCE OUR VISIT LAST MONTH.

|ARRIVED AT STATION ON AUGUST 2002.

THE DETENTION FACILITY WAS NOT YET FULLY OPERATIONAL WHEN |  |ARRIVED AT
STATION; SOME

CONSTRUCTION WAS STILL BEING COMPLETED. THE GUARDS WERE STOOD UP AT THE
BEGINNING OF

SEPTEMBER. AT THAT TIME, CONSTRUCTION WAS ONGOING. THE FACILITY WAS NOT
COMPLETE,

ALTHOUGH IT WAS FUNCTIONAL.
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COBALT

‘SAID HE WAS NOT ASSIGNED TO| |UNTIL HE HAD BEEN AT STATION FOR THREE

DAYS, IN

WHICH TIME HE WAS PLACED IN CHARGE OF DETAINEE AFFAIRS. HE DID NOT KNOW HE WAS
TO HAVE
THIS JOB WHEN HE DEPARTED FOR PCS \

HE DID NOT KNOW OF THE EXISTENCE OF| | (ALTHOUGH IT WAS NOT

WHEN HE DEPARTED |OoN PCS.

WITH THE QUESTIONER OFFERING THE OBSERVATION THAT THERE IS NO STANDARD
OPERATING PROCEDURE

("SOP") BUT THAT THERE ARE "EVOLVING" PRESCRIBED STANDARDS,
DEVISED '

THE DETENTION FACILITY PROCEDURES SUCH AS FOR THE USE OF DARKNESS, MUSIC, ETC.
HE REPLIED )

THAT HE DID NOT KNOW HOW THE CELLS WERE CONSTRUCTED.{

WAS ASKED WHO

HE STEREQC, HE PURCHASED. AS TO DARKNESS, THAT AGAIN WAS HIS DECISION.
IT WAS
ARRIVED AT SIMPLY [AS AN ALMOST NECESSARY‘EXPEDIENT]. SINCE THERE WAS ONLY ONE
LIGHT '
SWITCH FOR ALL LIGHTS IN THE CELL AREAS. IT WAS HE, THEREFORE, WHO DECIDED TO
KEEP ALL LIGHTS
OFF, (UNLESS THEY HAVE TO DO WORK IN THERE). FACED WITH THE CHOICE TO KEEP THEM
ON ALL THE
TIME OR OFF ALL THE TIME, HE CHOSE THE LATTER.

COBALT
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IN ABOUT AUGUST, AGENCY HEADQUARTERS ARRANGED WITH THE BUREAU OF PRISONS
{(BUPRISON)

FOR TRAINING, AS THE FIELD [I.E., STATION] WAS ALREADY REQUESTING TRAINING. THE
BUPRISON

TRAINERS DID NOT GET THERE UNTIL NOVEMBER.|  |STRUGGLED A BIT TO REMEMBER
THE DATE,

SETTLING FIRST ON OCTOBER, THEN WITH THE QUESTIONER'S LEAD, NOVEMBER.] |

SAID HE

UNDERSTANDS THAT BOTH THE BUPRISON OFFICERS ARE INTERESTED IN GOING OUT TO

‘ L .

HELP WITH FACILITY MANAGEMENT. THAT, HE SAID, WOULD BE VERY BENEFICIAL.

THUS, THERE WAS TRAINING FROM THE FBI, THE BUREAU OF PRISONS, AND OUR‘ -

AS TO THE DARKNESS, IT WAS PRESCRIBED SO THE DETAINEES WOULD NOT KNOW THE
PASSAGE OF

TIME. THIS WAS SOMETHING THAT WOULD DISORIENT THEM. THE INTENTION OF THE MUSIC
IS TO

PREVENT COMMUNICATIONS AMONG THE PRISONERS SO THEY ARE GIVEN THE SENSE THAT
THEY EXIST

IN ISOLATION, AND THUS SO THEY DO NOT KNOW THERE ARE OTHER PRISONERS. FOR THAT
REASON, THE

GUARDS DO NOT SHOUT AT THE PRISONERS; AS A CONSEQUENCE, THE PRISONERS CANNOT
TELL THAT THERE

ARE OTHER PRISONERS. THIS GIVES US MORE CONTROL OVER THE FACILITY. |ADDED,
EITHER HERE

OR IN LATER DISCUSSION, THAT WHEN HE FIRST ARRIVED IN THE FACILITY HE WENT INTO
ONE OF THE CELLS

AND YELLED, WITH THE RESULT THAT THEY DETERMINED HE COULD BE HEARD FROM AN
ADJOINING CELL.

THUS, THERE HAD TO BE SOME FORM OF NOISE MASKING.]

ASKED ABOUT THEIR GENERAL RULES REGARDING SHACKLING,|  |NOTED THERE ARE NO
WRITTEN

SOPS. INITIALLY, THE GENERAL RULE WAS THAT THEY WOULD SHACKLE ONE HAND TO THE
WALL IN A

SEATED POSITION. THIS IS IN ORDER THAT WHEN THE GUARDS (OR RENDITION PERSONNEL)
PLACE A

PRISONER INTO A CELL, THEY CAN EXFIL THE CELL WITHOUT RISK THAT THE DETAINEES
WILL GET UP AND

DO SOMETHING TO THEM. ASKED IF THIS WAS THUS AS A SECURITY MEASURE,;

ANSWERED YES.

ASKED IF THOSE RULES CHANGED AFTER THE BUPRISON VISIT,|
DETAINEES ARE

FIRST BROUGHT IN, | PERSONNEL DO THE TRANSPORTING,. AND IT HAS BECOME
HIS ;

PRACTICE THAT WHEN THEY ASK "WHAT TO YOU WANT TO DO WITH THIS GUY?" HE TELLS

__|SAID WHEN THE
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THEM,
"SHACKLE ONE OF HIS HANDS TO THE WALL." THEY STILL DO THAT THE SAME WAY (TODAY) .

ASKED WHEN THAT CHANGED FOR THE INDIVIDUAL DETAINEE - I.E., WHETHER THAT
CONDITION WOULD

BE RELAXED FOR DETAINEES - AND THUS, FOR EXAMPLE, WHETHER THE METHOD OF
RESTRAINT IN THE / "

CELL WOULD STILL BE AS ONEROUS ABOUT TWO WEEKS AFTER A DETAINEE'S ARRIVAL
ANSWERED

THAT IT DEPENDS ON BEHAVIOR, LEVEL OF COOPERATION, AS WELL AS THEIR ASSESSMENT ¢
OF WHETHER

THE PRISONER 1S DANGEROUS. IF THE PRISONER IS OLDER, OR OTHERWISE

NON-THREATENING, TREY

MIGHT NOT NEED TO [SHACKLE HIM THAT WAY].

‘|

‘47 JWAS ASKED WHAT WAS THE METHOD, THEN, IF THE PRISONER IS COOPERATIVE AND IS
NOT

DANGEROUS% ~ |SAID THEY NOW HAVE ABOUT 15 TO 20 PRISONERS. THERE IS SHACKLING
FOR ALL

OF THEM IN A VARIETY OF WAYS. HAND TO THE WALL, OR FEET TOGETHER, [OR SOME
COMBINATION] SO

| THEY WILL NOT BE ABLE TO OVERPOWER THE SMALL GUARDS. THERE IS NEVER
ANYEdbfrﬁNSHACKLED_
IF THE DETAINEE COOPERATES, THE BEST CONDITION WOULD BE TO HAVE ONLY THE FEET
SHACKLED .
OVER TIME, HOWEVER, THEY HAVE FOUND ABRASIONS ON THE FEET, AND THUS THEY HAVE
TO GO BACK
TO THE WALL.|

HAS ASKED THE GUARDS TO LOOK OUT FOR 'I‘HAT.|
|

HOWEVER, THAT DOESN'T ALWAYS GET DONE. [I.E., THE GUARDS AREN'T ALWAYS
ATTENTIVE TO THAT,
AND DON'T CHANGE THE PRISONERS' SHACKLES ON THEIR OWN INITIATIVE.]

ASKED ABOUT HOW THEY HANDLE UNCOOPERATIVE DBTAINEESQ
RAHMAN"

THERE WERE A COUPLE OF DIFFERENT WAYS. IF THEY HAND-SHACKLED A PRISONER, IT

WAS BECAUSE HE

WAS PRETTY MUCH NOT A THREAT. IN SUCH CASES THEY WOULD SHACKLE A HAND (OR TWO)

TO THE y

WALL, AND THE FEET WOULD BE SHACKLED TOGETHER. THE BUPRISON PEOPLE TAUGHT THE

GUARDS

HOW TO SHORT-CHAIN. THEY TOLD THE GUARDS NOT TO HOG-TIE THE PRISONERS, BECAUSE

OF THE RISK

OF ASPHYXIATION. SAID HE WAS NOT AN EXPERT, BUT HE UNDERSTOOD THAT THE ‘
BUPRISON

METHOD KEEPS THE HANDS AND FEET REASONABLY CLOSE TOGETHER.

| SAID THAT “PRE-GUL

THE OVERHEAD BAR IS USED WHEN THEY WANT TO KEEP THE PRISONER AWAKE OVERNIGHT.
ASKED
WHO DECIDES TO USE THAT METHOD,& ADVISED IT IS WHOEVER [AMONG THE AGENCY
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INTERROGATORS] 1S WORKING THAT CASE. ASKED IF THERE WERE "OTHER PUNISHMENTS"
EMPLOYED

BY THE FACILITY, | REPLIED, SOMEWHAT OBJECTING TO THAT CHARACTERIZATION,
THAT THEY DO NOT

USE ANY METHODS "AS PUNISHMENT." HE MENTIONED THAT THEY KEEP A DETAINEE AWAKE
ALL ’
NIGHT SO THEY CAN INTERROGATE WHEN THE DETAINEE IS NOT FRESH, I.E.
SLEEP-DEPRIVED. FOR

EXAMPLE, IN THE CASE OF RAHMAN, HE WAS STOOD UP FOR A COUPLE OF DAYS, BUT GAVE
NO

DIFFERENT INFORMATION, Sof :::]DIRBCTED THAT HE BE MOVED TO ANOTHER CELL. THIS
WAS '

CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL RECOMMENDATION/ADVICE OF THE PSYCHOLOGIST WHO
SUGGESTED

THAT AFTER 72 HOURS OF SLEEP DEPRIVATION, A PERSON'S LUCIDITY DECLINES SUCH
THAT FURTHER

QUESTIONTING T8 NOT LIKELY EFI"ECTIVE.i :SAID THE PSYCH TO WHOM HE REFERRED
WAS AN '

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR ("IC") FORMER DOD SENIOR SEER PSYCHOLOGIST, BRUCE [BRUCE
JESSEN] WHO WORKED THE GUL RAHMAN CASE.

.

NOW THERE 1S A PSYCH WHO TRAVELS WITH THE RENDITIONS TEAM, NOT AS AN
INTERROGATOR, BUT AS
SOMEONE WHO PROVIDES ASSESSMENTS TO THE INTERROGATORS.

BRUCE WAS AT WHEN RAHMAN ARRIVED.

HE DID SOME MENTAL STATUS ASSESSMENTS OF RAHMAN AND OTHER DETAINEES WHO CAME

IN AT
ABOUT THE SAME TIME. HE SINCE HAS LEFT AND GONE TO| WITH

AGAIN ASKED ABOUT PUNISHMENTS,|  |SAID HE NEVER APPROACHED IT AS PUNISHMENT

FOR

UNCOOPERATIVE BEHAVIOR. THEY ALREADY HAVE DEPRIVED THE DETAINEES SUBSTANTIALLY
AS A

PREMISE FOR THE INTERROGATION PROCESS, THERE'S NOT REALLY MUCH TO TAKE AWAY.
INSTEAD, THEY )

CAN ADD COMFORTS. FOR EXAMPLE, THE LIGHTS, BLANKETS, MAT TO SLEEP ON. THEY
BUILT THE CELL

WITH THE ROCKING CHATR. THEY CAN ALLOW A COOPERATING DETAINEE TO SPEND SOME
TIME IN THAT

ROOM, WITH FOAMIES FOR THEIR EARS FOR THE NOISE. | |HAS HAD TO SCHEDULE USE
OF THAT ROOM

BASED ON AVAILABILITY. IN GENERAL, PRIVILEGES ARE NOT TAKEN FROM PRISONERS,
RATHER REWARDS

MAY BE GIVEN TO THEM.

i IF THE DETAINEES ARE COMPLAINING ABOUT SOMETHING, THAT'S A MATTER

THAT SHOULD BE FIRST
HANDLED BY THE GUARDS. ASKED IF HE COULD DIRECT THAT A DETAINEE BE GIVEN A

BLANKET, | |
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SAID YES. IN THE SUMMER AND INTO FALL WHEN RAHMAN DIED, IT WAS STILL QUITE
WARM. AT THAT 7

TIME THEY COULD BE WORRIED ABOUT CREATURE COMFORTS. NOW, HOWEVER, THE CONCERN
IS FOR

SAFETY AS A PRIORITY. AS TO COLD, WE (I.E., STATION) TOCK THAT OPTION AWAY.
WE NOW HAVE A

LOT OF BLANKETS AND WARM CLOTHES.

QUESTIONED ABOUT THINGS BEING TAKEN AWAY, |ANSWERED THAT THEY COULD PUT
SOMEBODY

IN THE LUXURY SUITE. FOR EXAMPLE, HE SAID
ALLOWED HIM

INTO THE LUXURY SUITE, BUT LATER PUT HIM BACK INTO THE BASELINE ROOM WITH HIS
HANDS

CHAINED. THERE ‘IS NOTHING ELSE THEY CAN REALLY TAKE AWAY. THERE ARE NO
PRIVILEGES LIKE TEA

OR EXOTIC FOOD.

THEY HAD

ASKED ABOUT THE DECISION TO TAKE RAHMAN'S PANTS AWAY.L AAJEXPLAINED THAT
INITIALLY HE

WAS IN A RENDITION DIAPER. HE STAYED THAT WAY FOR A COUPLE OF DAYS OR SEVERAL
DAYS, WHILE )

THEY, HE AND BRUCE JOINTLY, WERE MOST INTENSELY QUESTIONING RAHMAN. | o
SPOKE TO

RAHMAN AFTER BRUCE DEPARTED, AND HE COMPLAINED ABOUT THE COLD. BUT HE
COMPLAINED

ABOUT EVERYTHING, AS AN OBVIOUS IMPLEMENTATION OF RESISTANCE TECHNIQUES.:_
GAVE HIM
A SWEATSHIRT AND SOCKS ABOUT TWO DAYS PRIOR TO HIS DEATH.

THUS, AGAIN, IT IS NOT THAT SOMETHING IS TAKEN AWAY. EVERYTHING IS TAKEN AWAY

WHEN THEY
FIRST ARRIVE. THE DIAPER CONSISTS TYPICALLY OF A DEPENDS WITH DUCT TAPE. THE
INITIAL _
PURPOSE OF THE DIAPER IS HUMILIATION AND IF THERE IS AN ACCIDENT BETWEEN
BREAKS [SUCH As

WHEN THE PRISONER IS CHAINED STANDING UP] - THERE ARE NO DRAINS IN THE CELLS

SUCH AS WOULD
FACILITATE CLEAN-UP - THEN THERE ARE HYGIENIC REASONS AS WELL.

IN RESPONSE TO THE QUESTION AS TO WHAT HAD HAPPENED TO RAHMAN'S DIAPER,
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SAID HE DID

NOT KNOW. HE ADDED THAT HE WOULD HAZARD A GUESS THAT THE GUARDS DID IT. THE
GUARDS

DON'T HAVE DIAPERS [TO REPLACE ANY THEY MAY HAVE HAD TO REMOVE] . LATER
MODIFIED
THIS BY SAYING THAT THEY MAY HAVE SOME DIAPERS;J! 74}PERSONNEL PUT THE

DIAPERS ON AND OFF.

IN RENDITIONS, THE PERSONS BEING RENDERED ARE CLOTHED IN SWEATS AND
SWEATSHIRT AND A '
DIAPER. THUS, THAT IS THE UNIFORM THAT RAHMAN CAME IN.

L 7 /ASKED IF HE WOULD HAVE HAD PANTS FOR ABOUT THREE DAYS,
| SAID HE DID

NOT KNOW IF IT WAS THAT LONG. HE ADDED THAT ALL OF RAHMAN'S CLOTHES WERE
TAKEN FROM HIM

(EXCEPT THE DIAPER) WHEN HE WAS BROUGHT IN TO BE INTERROGATED.

[ /COULD NOT RECALL WHETHER OR NOT RAHMAN HAD A DIAPER WHEN HE SAW HIM TWO
DAYS

PRIOR TO HIS DEATH. MAYBE THREE DAYS. AT THAT OCCASION, RAHMAN HAD NOTHING TO
SAY. IT
B | WAS THE DAY BEFORE RAHMAN'S DEATH, THE GUARDS TOLD HIM, THAT RAHMAN
WAS THROWING

THINGS AT THEM. ASKED IF THE GUARDS, THEREFORE, HAD REMOVED THE DIAPER AFTER
ABOUT TWO OR

THREE DAYS, |SAID HE WAS NOT SURE WHEN RAHMAN LOST HIS DIAPER. HE DID NOT
KNOW. HE )

DID NOT RECALL IF RAHMAN HAD A DIAPER ON WHEN HE GAVE HIM HIS SWEATSHIRT.

AGAIN ASKED WHEN RAHMAN LOST THE DIAPERJ :SAID SOMETHING TO THE EFFECT
THAT ONE HALF

OF THE PRISONERS HAVE BEEN NAKED, AND THAT THE ONLY DIAPER THEY HAD WOULD
HAVE BEEN THE

ONE WHEN RENDITIONED. [IT DEPENDS ON WHAT TYPE OF INTERROGATION IS BEING
USED.] NOW,

NOBODY IS NAKED BECAUSE IT IS REAL FREAKIN' COLD.

ASKED WHAT ARE THE OCCASIONS IN WHICH A DETAINEE MIGHT BE STRIPPED.DOWN TO A
DIAPER,
| |ANSNERED (1) IF THERE WERE CURRENT THREAT INFORMATION THAT THEY NEEDED
TO ELICIT, OR

(2) IF THERE WERE INFORMATION OF SIGNIFICANT INTELLIGENCE VALUE THEY HAD TOQ
ELICIT, OR (3) IF

THE DETAINEE WAS NOT COOPERATING. ONE OF THEIR TECHNIQUES IS TO TAKE THE
CLOTHES AND PUT

ON A DIAPER. THERE IS ONE THERE NOW GOING THROUGH THAT, ALTHOUGH THERE IS NOT
A LOT OF TIME

LEFT [FOR THAT] .
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THERE IS NO PROBLEM NOW WITH PRISONERS IN DIAPERS. THERE ARE NO PROBLEMS WITH
GENITALIA
OR ANAL FUNCTIONS. OR AT LEAST NONE HAVE BEEN BROUGHT TO| ATTENTION.

ASKED IF THERE HAVE BEEN OTHER INSTANCES OF PERSONS HAVING OR LOOKING TO
DEVELOP
HYPOTHERMIA, SAID NO. A LOT IN DIAPERS ARE IN MUCH BETTER PHYSICAL
' CONDITION.
RAHMAN WAS PROBABLY THE MOST PHYSICALLY FIT, STRONG [AMONG THOSE WHO HAVE
BEEN PUT
INTO DIAPERS]. OTHERS HAVE BEEN 95 POUNDS - AN OLD MAN, FOR EXAMPLE.

AT THE TIME RAHMAN DIED - WAS THAT ‘NOVEMBER? - IT WAS A TIME OF
DRASTICALLY
DROPPING TEMPERATURES .

— E— |

| THUS, NOW NOTHING CAN BE TAKEN AWAY, ON ACCOUNT OF THE TEMPERATURE. o

THERE ARE A VARIETY OF THINGS
'THAT HAVE BEEN o
MODIFIED AS A RESULT OF THE TEMPERATURE. AND THERE ARE OTHER REASONS. FOR

EXAMPLE, WE DO

NOT CHAIN THE DETAINEES BY BOTH HANDS BECAUSE THEY COULD NOT PULL THEIR
CLOTHES OVER THEIR

BODIES. FOR THE SAME REASON, THERE IS NO STANDING UP AT NIGHT. THESE
SOFTENING CONDITIONS

ARE GETTING IN THE WAY, AND WE NEED TO BE CONCERNED ABOUT THEM. THERE IS NO
CENTRAL

HEATING.

THERE ARE NOW ABOUT 15 HEATERS IN THE CELL AREA, SPACED OUT. SPACED OUT TO
AVOID A CARBON
MONCXIDE PROBLEM. THERE ARE ALSO FIRE EXTINGUISHERS IN PLACE

THEY FOUND THEY WERE EMPTY.

- CARBON MONOXIDE IS NOT A LIKELY EFFECT BECAUSE MOST OF
THE HEAT GOES

OUT THE ROCF. | THERE IS NO INSULATION
= | — e 22zl = R

CONCERNING THE “SLIGHT BREAKTHROUGH" THAT THEY'D HAD WITH RAHMAN BEFORE HE
DIED - AT

THE POINT WHERE HE FINALLY ADMITTED HE WAS GUL RAHMAN WAS ASKED IF HE
ATTRIBUTED v

THAT TO THE CONDITIONS, IT APPEARING TO BE A SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENT IN FACE
OF HIS FORMER
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- 47§STOIC RESISTANCE.\ iREPLIED YES, THAT IT APPEARED THAT RAHMAN
DECIDED TO BEND A LITTLE.
HE KNEW THAT WE KNEW HE WAS GUL RAHMAN. WE POSSESSED PICTURES WE HAD FOUND ON
HIM. AT FIRST WHEN WE ASKED IF THAT WAS HIM, HE WOULD ANSWER NO. HE
CATEGORICALLY
DENIED IT. ULTIMATELY, HE SAID "IT COULD BE ME." THAT WAS NOT MUCH, BUT IT WAS
A CHANGE
FROM A CATEGORICAL DENIAL.

ASKED ABOUT THE TREATMENT OF THE GUARDS PRIOR TO THE CLOTHES BEING TAKEN, |
SAID HE DID -
NOT KNOW. THE CLOTHES WERE TAKEN FROM RAHMAN FOR A COUPLE OF DAYS, AT THE TIME
THEY

WERE SUBJECTING HIM TO SLEEP DEPRIVATION. RAHMAN'S ATTITUDE WAS THAT HE WAS
CONTROLLED,

NOT ARGUMENTATIVE, NOT CRYING, NOT UPSET THAT HE'D BEEN INCARCERATED, NOT
THREATENING TO

[ ' HE WOULDN'T RAMBLE. HE MIGHT PAUSE, A THINKING PAUSE, AND THEN HE WOULD
GIVE A

SHORT ANSWER. RAHMAN WAS COMMITTED IDEALOGICALLY. HE HAD A HIGH DEGREE OF
LOYALTY TO

THE PERSONS HE WAS SERVING. HE WOULD INTERJECT RELIGIOUS PHRASES, SUCH AS
"THANKS TO

GOD" (A WAY OF SAYING, IN EFFECT, "ALL IS WELL"). HE SAID THIS AS AN ANSWER TO
SOME OR ALL

QUESTIONS. SAID | THIS WAS DISTINGUISHABLE FROM THE VAST MAJORITY OF
PRISONERS THEY

TALK TO.

BRUCE DESCRIBED RAHMAN AS ONE OF THE MOST FANATICAL INTERVIEW RESISTERS HE HAD

SEEN IN .

HIS ENTIRE CAREER.| |HAD A FAIRLY HIGH DEGREE OF RESPECT FOR RAHMAN, FOR HIS
WILLINGNESS

TO RESIST. HE WAS AN ADVERSARY TO BE RESPECTED. HE WAS OBVIQUSLY QUITE
INTELLIGENT,

ALTHOUGH HE CLAIMED NOT TO HAVE HAD MUCH EDUCATION.

IN WARM WEATHER, KEEPING PRISONERS UP (I.E., AWAKE) WAS GENERAL SOP. IF WE COULD

CONTROL THE ENVIRONMENTAL SITUATION - TO KEEP IT AT 70 -- IT WOULD BE AN
EFFECTIVE WAY TO

DEAL WITH PRISONERS LIKE GUL RAHMAN. OBVIOUSLY IT HAD THE INTENDED EFFECT. PER
THE

MENTAL STATUS EXAM, ENVIRONMENTAL DEPRIVATION, SLEEP DEPRIVATION MADE RAHMAN
WILLING

TO CHANGE HIS RESPONSE A LITTLE BIT FOR IMPROVED TREATMENT;VAA? WAS CERTAINLY
HOPING TO

TALK WITH RAHMAN OVER A LONGER PERIOD OF TIME, SO THEY COULD GET SOME FURTHER
ADMISSION,

RAHMAN WOULD HAVE CLUNG TO THINGS HE THOUGHT IMPORTANT, BUT HE WOULD GIVE UP
ANCILLARY

THINGS TO IMPROVE KIS TREATMENT, BUT NOT SUCH AS WOULD BETRAY HIS PEOPLE.
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UPON THE QUESTIONER'S OBSERVATION THAT THIS WAS AN OBVIOUSLY "SOLID PROGRAM, "
BUT THAT IT

SEEMED STRANGE THAT IT WOULD BE RUN BY A . .‘ {ANSHER WAS "HOPEFULLY

SOME '

DAY." I.E., HE EXPLAINED, HE IS NOT A] | BUT INSTEAD IS A

\ . ) o A N

|

|

|
\
|
i
|

|

‘ \
\
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‘ \

\ ‘
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[THE QUESTIONERS NOTED TO |THAT IN TALKING TO THE GUARDS

INDICATED

THAT PANTS HAD BEEN ON ONLY A FEW DAYS, THEN WERE TAKEN FROM THE PRISONER.)
ASKED IF HE

WOULD HAVE BEEN THE PERSON TO TELL THE GUARDS TO REMOVE PMNTS,‘r | REPLIED
YES,
‘ |AND THUS EVEN IF ANOTHER INTERROGATOR WERE THE SOURCE OF THE
DIRECTION, IT

WOULD HAVE TO COME THROUGH HIM. HE DID NOT RECALL IN THE CASE OF GUL RAHMAN IF
IT WAS

HIMSELF OR|

AND, SAID |THEY DIDN'T TAKE HIS PANTS. THEY TOOK ALL OF HIS CLOTHES.
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RAHMAN ALWAYS

COMPLAINED ABOUT BEING COLD. THAT WAS NOT UNUSUAL. YOU COULD COUNT ON GUL
RAHMAN TO

COMPLAIN ABOUT A VARIETY OF CONDITIONS. FOR EXAMPLE, HE COMPLAINED ABOUT THERE
BEING

NOT ENOUGH FOOD. RAHMAN WAS THERE QUITE A WHILE BEFORE HE ADMITTED HIS NAME.
| bAID HE WAS MOVING TOWARD APPROVAL OF MOVING RAHMAN TO A [LIGHTER STATUS] .
TRYING TO MOVE HIM UP THE LADDER. BEING SOMETHING OF A NICE GUY, A REWARDS-LIKE
APPROACH. RAHMAN HAS BEEN THROUGH THE INTERROGATORS' HARD APPROACH.

| SAID HE WAS NOT SURE IF HE DID SPEAK TO THE GUARDS (ABOUT THE PANTS). THEY
WOULDN' T

HAVE DONE IT ON THEIR OWN, IT WAS DONE AFTER HE WAS STOOD UP FOR A COUPLE OF
DAYS.

ULTIMATELY, THE DECISION TO STAND A DETAINEE UP WOULD HAVE BEEN | } -
AND BRUCE -

WERE TALKING TO RAHMAN, SO IN HIS CASE THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN DECIDED BY| ‘AND
BRUCE.

ASKED TO DESCRIBE A RENDITIONLL ‘

THE (USG) CREW MEETS THE DETAINEE IN A ROOM TO TAKE OVER CONTROL.

THEY STRIP,
SEARCH, AND PHOTOGRAPH THE PERSON BEING RENDERED, SO THAT THEY DOCUMENT IF HE
HAS BEEN

BEAT UP OR TRAUMATIZED. ANYTHING SIGNIFICANT WOULD BE DOCUMENTED. THE MEDIC
| | | )
CAN NOTE IT. WHEN THEY FLY i

"|THE ARE '
HOODED, WITH FOAMIES AND THE BIG THINGS OVER THEIR EARS, SO THEY DO NOT KNOW
WHERE THEY
ARE.

WHEN THEY ARRIVE, THE SECURITf PERSONNEL TAKE THE RENDERED PERSON TO A CELL,
AND CHAIN HIM
TO THE WALL.

THE GUARDS THEN GO TO THE CELL AND REMOVE THE EYE MASK AND HOOD AND THE EAR
PROTECTION.
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THE GUARDS NEVER COMPLAINED ABOUT THE COLD FOR THE DETAINEES.

THE GUARDS NEVER COMPLAINED ABOUT THE PRISONERS' LACK OF FOOD OR CREATURE
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COMFORTS .

ASKED ABOUT WHETHER THE GUARDS EVEN KNEW RAHMAN'S NAME, |SAID THEY DID NOT,
ALTHOUGH HE ADDED THAT COULD HAVE OVERHEARD IT WITHIN THE FACILITY. THE GUARDS
DID LEARN
~ THE NAMES OF SOME OF THE DE?%INEES.j ‘
|
|
[

OTHERWISE, THEY REFER TO THE DETAINEES BY CELL NUMBER.

THERE ARE NOW THERMOMETERS IN THE FACILITY. THE GUARDS ARE NOW MORE ATTENTIVE
TO THE
COLD. BUT, AGAIN, THERE HAVE BEEN NO COMPLAINTS FROM THE GUARDS SINCE RAHMAN'S
DEATH .

EACH FOUR HOURS,
THE GUARDS
RECORD THE TEMPERATURE |
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ASKED WHO WAS RUNNING THE PROGRAM WHEN ARRIVED

ANSWERED THAT THE GUARDS WERE NOT
THERE YET
WHEN HE ARRIVED.

THE PROGRAM WAS IN A
STATE OF

LIMBO OF SORTS.

| THIS
WAS ONLY A
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT, NOT MORE YET.;
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REGARDING THE SMELLS, THE GUARDS HAD COMPLAINED ABOUT THE SMELLS PRIOR TO
RAHMAN 'S
DEATH. WE GAVE THEM SURGICAL MASKS IN RESPONSE.

ASKED AGAIN ABOUT THE GUARDS' EMPATHY FOR PRISONERS, |ALLUDED TO THE SHOWER
INCIDENT. FOR THE SHOWER, THE WATER HEATER WAS NOT WORKING. THE GUARDS GAVE
RAHMAN A

SHOWER, AND HE WAS SHIVERING A LOT.{ i CHECKED AND SAW THE
SITUATION, AND TOLD THE GUARDS TO GIVE HIM A BLANKET, WHICH THEY DID. THAT WAS

A COUPLE OF

WEEKS BEFORE RAHMAN DIED. THIS WAS EXEMPLARY OF THE GUARDS' BEHAVIOR* ‘
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THE

BUREAU OF PRISONS GUYS CALLED HIM THEIR SHIFT COMMANDER. GAVE THE BUPRISON
TRAINERS TWO OBJECTIVES, TO (1) TRAIN AND (2) ORGANIZE THE GUARDS. THUS, THE
GUARDS WERE ‘

TAUGHT HOW TO OPERATE IN SHIFTS, AND HOW TO CONDUCT CHECKS ON THE STATUS OF THE
DETAINEES.

ASKED WHEN BRUCE LEFT(ﬁ 447475 ADVISED HEmﬁAS AT THE FACILITY ABOUT A
\

WEEK :

OR MORE, AND WHEN HE LEFT, WAS ALONE RESPONSIBLE FOR RAHMAN AND THE

FACILITY
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. 'ON THE SUBJECT OF MEDICAL SUPPORT| |SAID THE DOC TRIES TO GET OUT TO
THE FACILITY AT

LEAST EVERY TWO WEEKS, AND AS NEEDED.

ASKED AGAIN ABOUT RAHMAN'S FOOD-THROWING INCIDENT$ SAID IT WAS
UNUSUAL AS AN
OUTBURST OF EMOTION. ‘ADDED THAT RAHMAN'S REAL REASON TO COMPLAIN WAS AS A

RESISTANCE TECHNIQUE.

ASKED ABOUT WHETHER OTHERS HAD BEEN UNCLOTHEDA

| IT DID HAVE THE DESIRED EFFECT ON
RAHMAN,
HOWEVER. RAHMAN SAID AT ONE POINT THAT HE COULD NOT TALK "LIKE THIS" BECAUSE
IT WAS
EMBARRASSING FOR HIM.| |ADDED THAT HE THREW RAHMAN'S HOOD OVER RAHMAN'S
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PRIVATE
AREAS AND THE INTERROGATION PROCEEDED.
IT PERMITTED

TO GIVE HIM SOMETHING.

THUS,

THIS WAS A

USEFUL DEVICE IN THAT
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CONFIDENTIAL/NOFORN E
Below are the descriptions of potential physical and psycholmgihal pressures
discussed in the July 8, 2002 meeting. The aim of using these btechniques is to
dislocate the subject's expectations concerning how he is apt tb be treated and
instill fear and despair. The intent is to elicit compliance by motivating him
to provide the required information, while avoiding permanent. physical harm or
profound and pervasive personality change, ;
1. Attention Grasp: :
In a controlled and quick motion, grasp the individual with hoth hands, one on
each side of the collar opening. In the same motion, draw the individual toward
you. H
2.Walling: The individual is stood in front of a specially constructed flexible
wall. The individual's heels touch the wall. The individual s pulled
forward and then quickly and firmly pushed into the wall. The heéad and neck are
supported with & rolled hood or towel that provides a c-collar effect to help
prevent whiplash. Contact with the wall is made with the individual’s shoulder
blades. To reduce the probability ef injury, the individual islallowed to
rebound from the wall.

3. Facial Hold: One open palm is placed on either side of the individual's
face, fingertips well away from the individual's eyes. The goal is to hold the
head immobile.

4. Facial Slap (Insult Slap): The slap is delivered with fingers slightly
spread. Contact should be made with the area directly between the Lip of the
chin and the bottom of the corresponding earlobe. ThHe goal of éhe facial slap
is to induce shock and surprise; not severe pain. '

3. Cramped Confinement: Individuals are placed in a confined space the
dimension of which restricts movement. The container is usvally dark.
Individuals may be kept in larger confinement spaces for up Lo 18 hours, and
smaller confinement boxes for one hour.

6. Wall Standing: This technique is used to induce fatigue. Th¢ individual
stands approximately 4 or 5 feet from a wall, with his fest spreéad
approximately shoulder width. With arms out stretched in front, |fingers resting
on the wall supporting body weight. Individuals are not allowed|to move or
reposition their feet or hands.

7. Stress Positions: A variety of stress positions are possihlei They focus on
producing mild physical discomfort from prolonged muscle use, rather than pain
associated with contortions or twisting of the bady. The two digcussed were (1)
the subject sitting on the floor with legs extended straight out in front of
him with his arms raised above his head; and (2) having the subﬂect knéel on
the floor and lean back at a 45 degree angle.

8. Sleep Deprivation: Preventing sleep is intended ta have CheJeffect of
reducing the subject’'s ability to think on his feet secondary td fatigue and
to motivate him to cooperate because of the discomfort associat%d with sleep
debt.. For most people, the effects of sleep deprivation remit ﬁfter one or two
nights of uninterrupted sleep. In rare circumstances, individujls predisposed
to psychological problems may display abreactions, but these tod generally
remit after the individual sleeps. The record (Guinness Book qf World
Records) for voluntary sleep depzivation is 205 hours with the subject showing
no significant psychological problems and quick recovery after gne or two days

9. Water Board: With this procedure. individuals are bound securely to an
inclined bench. Initially a cloth is placed over the subject's iforehead and
eyes. As water is applied in a controlled manpner, the cloth is |slowly lowered
until it also covers the mouth and nose. Once the cloth is saturated and
completely covering the wouth and nose, subject would be exposed to 20 to 40

CONFIDENTIAL/NOFORN 6/16/2015 10:53 AM
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seconds of restricced airflow. Water 19 applied to keep the cloth saturated.
After the 20 ro 40 seconds of restricted airflow, the cloth is cemoved and the
subject is allawed to breath unimpeded. After 3 or 4 full preaths, the

4 procedure may be repeated. water is usually applied ¢rom a uanheen cup or

small watering can with 2 spout.

10: use of piapers: The subject appears to be very fastidious. He spend much
time cleaning himself and seems to go out of his way to avoid circumstances
1ikely to pring him in contact with potentially unclean objects oF material.
He is very sensitive to situations that reflect 2 1oss of status OF are
potentially numiliating. one way teo leverage his concerns, while helping
ensure his wound doesn't become infected with human waste when in cramped
confinement is to place him in an adult diaper. 1f soiled, =Bre would have to
be taken LO keep human waste owt of his leg wound.

11. Insects: The subject appears to nhave a fear of insects. One'possibiliny 15
to threaten to place stinging insects into the cramped confinement box with
him, but instead place harmless jnsects. The purpose of this would be tO play
off nis fears and increase his sense of dread and motivate hum O avoid the boX
in the future by cooperating with the interrogator’s requests.

12. Mock purial: The individual is placed in 2 cramped conf inement DOX that
raesembles 28 coffin. The pox has hidden air holes to prevent suf focation. The
individual is moved to @ prepared site where he hears diggineg- The site has 3
prepared hole, dug in such a way that the box can be jowered into the ground
and shovels of dirt thrown in on top of it without pblocking rhe air noles OV
actually purying the individual. This procedure would be usad as part of a
threat and rescue scenario where the "burial” is interrupted and the subject is
rescued by 2 concerned party. The zescuexrs then use the subject's fear of
being returned teo the people trying to bury him as a means o pressuring the
subject for information. .

Hope this helps:

Jim Mitchell

gent on 8 July 2002 at 04:15:15 PM

ce:

sent on 9 July 2002 at 07:22:23 A
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Frxom:

To:

Ces

Boc!:

Subject: ‘RDG Tasking for IC Psychologists Jessen and Mizchell

Date: 6/16/2003 4:54:32 pM

My comments are highlighted in yellow, They can be summarized as:

1) contractor activities should nol interfere with or suppliant the ongaing

activities of staff psychologists/psychiatrists

2} we oeed to distinguish belween standards of conduct and nthical standards

for psychologists - Jim and Bruce can make a contribubtion in the former area,

but mechanisms alveady exist For monitoring the ethical conduct psychologists

3) Jim and Bruce should not be involved in establishing the credentials for
HVT psychologists

4) any resurrection of a resistance to interrogation program should be done

with the oversight of OMY :

5) we are Lhe resident experts in personnel selection - we would welcome the

input of Jim and Bruce as we go about our jobs

6) we value thelr input but they should not be in charge of anything - any

reporiing they do should be reviewed by

Az you are aware, RDG has assumad eperational
control of the IC psychologists Bruce Jessen and Jim Mitche.l. %We have an
agreament with 0TS on the use of the ICs that runs as fol lows: ‘RDG decides

when, where, and foxr how long they deploy, and in what capauity. The ICs agree
to this arrangement--indeed, they welcome t--and have pledged ro do whatever
they can to help us on our missions. As part of the arranyement, we are going
to transition them from their previous interrogator role to "strateglc
consulting” tasks that fit their academic backgrounds, capanilities, and
pragrical and professsional experienze as paychologists.

have hal long discussions
with the ICs and believe they have much value to add to ou:x programs. Toward
that end, we have arafted a draft to guids the bransitiaon to
this new strategic role. Ve believe this role is more in L.ne with their IC
status,

Becsause OMS has an excellent staff of psychologists whom we rely on heavily, we
solicit your comments on the taskings listed below.

In crafting this list of tasks for the two ICs, we have identitijed projects
that they have direct experience doing for other customers f{e.g. Dob), those
that relate directly to their skill sets, and those that leverage their
personal experience since joining the CIA (the A% transition).

Immediate Project requirement: Jim and Bruce (JaB) will deploy to

to serve as psychologists. There they will conduct 2 full
psychological review of the EVTs with a view to recommending specific steps we
ceed to take to prepare the HVTs for the transition to the Endgame Facility at
Guantanamo.

SECRETANSFORN 171412016 1:30 PM
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-— They will begin thiz effort with Abu Zubaydah, whom they know better Lhan
all other HVT personnel. AZ also has been in our conbtrol the longest. FIrom
the results of their discussioms with A%, J&B will recommend a plan--including
specific steps~~fo our use in preparing all the HVTs psychelogically for the
relocation to Guantanamo for long-term detention. Because the confinement of
all the HVTs has been on an indeterminate basis--none, including AZ, knows what
will become of them--the transition process is extremely tricky.
=~ The objective of this transition program is Lo provide appropriate
structure and meaning to the life of the HVY, all of whom are young and will be
confined for the rest of their natural lives, and to ensure that they can be
productive intelligence "assets" of CIA for the Long=-term.

=~ Among the issues Jim and Bruce will make recommendations on are: what are
the key occupational, recreational, intelleatual, medical, and psychological
variables we must consider in the transition of each HVT to GTMO? How do these
variables affect intelligence collections and facility security? For example,
should we allow HVPs to communicate with each other? How much time outside of
isolation is valid? How much external stimuli is appropria~e, and what kinds?

Jim and Bruce
have the skills Lo examine these issues systematically and came up with
reasonable recommendations. Any data collected by them from detainees with
whom they previously interacted as interrogators will always be suspect,
however. The project would be better served if our folks did the assessmenls
{particularly since psychiatric assessments might be useful in soem cases) and
Jim and Bruce focussed on external data collection.

General Project Work Plan: Per our discussions with J&B, they will work
principally as strategic consultants to the HVTI and associated Facilities and
Support programs cf RDG. As such, primary duties will include:

~= Give written recommendations and oral presentations on proagram procedures,
methods, and training (see specifics below).

-~ As senior HVII cadre members and, psychologists, deploy to our sites to
mentoxr, review, and provide feedback to maragement on program development and
plans.

~~ During their deployments to our sites, serve as needed as psychologlists
on the HVTI team.

-~ On site, advise and consult the senior HVTI interrogator and COB as
needed.

~- When available, participate in both the HVT debriefing aund intercogator
courses as needed.

—-— Advise and consult on the design and use of RDG's training, black sites,
and leng-terxm detention facilities

-- if abgolutely necessary to mission, serve as HVT interrogators and/or
mentor junior HVT interrogators.

Conseltations regarding program development also seem to be appropriate for our
consultants, although their expertise in training interrogators seems to have
escaped me up until now. My greatest concegn in this area is the likelihood of
Jim and Bruce ignoring or interfering with our on-site psychologists when they
are deployed. Blthough these guys believe that Their way is the only way,
there should be an effort to define roles and responsibilities before thelr
arrogance and narcissism evolve into unproductive conflict in the field. It
may be helpful for CTC to meet jeintly with Jim/Bruce (Do they ever do anything
independently?) and our traveling roadshow.

Specific Projects:

1) Draft Code of Ethics/Standards - J&B will get with

SECREHINOFORN 1/14/2016 1:30 PM

Salim v. Mitchell - United States Bates #001103
09/20/2016



3 of4

UNCLASSIFIED // FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

SECRETHNOFORN

and get his input and
on-the-shelt ethics code. They will then adapt an interrogator-specific draft
sel for us. We have identified this as a major gap in our program based en ouc
J&B recommend that we then all sit down
and discuss

-~ As part of this effort, J&B also will draft a mission stalement based on
their knowledge of the program (part of which is already containred in the
following project proposall.

The use of the term ethics is likely to continue to contribute Lo confusion.
If we bave adopted the SERE model, then Jim and Bruce are in a position to
facilitate the development of standards of conduct for our vrogram. Special
ethical standards for psychologists are unnegcessary - our professional
responsibilities are clearly articulated by our own code of ethics. We may
want to develop examples of how those ethical principles apply in this unique
Tine of work, but this is mattexr best handled by our cudre ¢ operational
psychologists. .Jim and Rob have both shown blatant disregard for the ethics
shared by almost all of their colleagues. They also used d.scussions of
standards and ethics to limit our parvicipation in this line of work. We have
an ethics committee within and they are qualified to monitor any issue that
might arrise.

2) Project Proposal - ({see copy separately provided) - Baseline psychological
review of our interrogation and debriefing tactics, techniques and procedures
gurrently in use with fthe goal of evaluating, revising, and refining as
needed. Also, review potential interrogation and debriefing tactics,
techniques and precedures NOT in use by us and evaluate/reccmmand development
and validation of new/modified procedures.
~=- Bottom-line ig that this project is intended to identify ways to achieve
effective psychological coercive impact on the HVT through application of less
invasive physical means~-the major thrust of our program sirce its inception.
A refined set of methods/tactics/procedures should further Inwer the risks of
unintended psychological or physical harm to HVT and alse lower the strain on
HVTI cadre. The project demonstrates our recognilion of the need for due
diligence in our program and, most important, wiil result ir. more productive,
efficient intelligence collection.
~+~ As part of this project, J&B propose meeting with a senicr
psychologist/academic counterpart

Without specifying wnat they are doing tor us, J&B want to
elicit info on latest developments efforts in the
psychology/interrogation field. approve a trip by J&B to meet

to acomplish this task.

All worthy goals ~ hope they enjoy lheir trip{s) Just hope aur
myopic view of the interrogation process doesn't come back to haunt us. He
seem to be wedded exclusively to the military model and nat aven exploring what
the law enforcement community may have to offer. It's hard for me to imagine
that these guys can function with even a modicum of objectivity as

researchers. I would just encourage a broader approach to the problem.

3) As part of (2) above, draft a separate paper aimed at helping interrogators
and debriefers gain a practical understanding of haw human memory works. This
will help people understand why HVTs--like "normal® humans~-con't recali
everything the intel "model® says they should.

4) Draft Protocols on How to Conduct Training/How to Executs Interrxogations in
the Field - Following baseline review of our documentation, training manuals,
procedures, J&B will develop draft papers on how we should btrain interrogators,
using their knowledge of JPRA, Tait, and and how we execute
what we train in the field, from the planning of the interrojation to the
execution and transition to debriefing. Objective is to create a formal °

SECREFHNOFORN V1472016 1:30 PM
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framework that senior interrogators can use to Lrairn, monivonr, evaluate, and
provide feedback to trainees and novice interrogators. To zarry out the
project, J&B will need to observe our candidates in action (as psychologists
and HVYT cadre members) .

~— As part of thia, J&B will bring vs what JPRA documentation/procedures they
have on hand (much of which Bruce drafted).

-~ Major element of this effort will be to train our senior HVT instructors on
how to recognize and correct "drifi" in the intecrogation process.

5) J&B will conduct a review of JPRA training and exercises to recommend a
list of procedures, methods, and best practices they helieve we can incorporate
and/oxr adapl in our program.

~- in doing this, they will assess the value-added of eXpos.ng our HVTI cadre
to the physical/psychological pressures applied to students ab JPRA.

and C/RDG hypothesis is that cur program must incorporate such exposures for
our interrogators and psychologists to he able to assess acrurately the
reactions/psychological state of HVTs undergeing enhance in-errogation measures.

6) Draft a CONOP for developing organic interrogation/count er-interrogations
training modules. They will tailor this to help us map out options for
establishing an autonomous Directorate of Opezations/CIA capability. We will
use the conop produced to assess the value of in-house training capabilities
and programs for DO officers

and other CIA personnel who may need it.

If we are talking about reinventing a resistance to interrogation program, we
have the internal expertise (complete with substantive and tistorical
knowledge} to accomplish the task. We are not training military personnel at
risk of being wrapped up during military missions. Wholesale adoption of the
Jim and Bruce show just isa't appropriate.

7}  Interrogator Candidate Selection Criteria - develop a sef of psychological
criteria we can use to screen candidates as well as apply to evaluate certified
intexrogators.

We waelcome their input, but personnel selection is e clearly defined
responsibility of + We also are quite competent to do the type of job
analysis essential to the development of a sucnessful program. We've actually
done this a few time!

P.S. The 1000 meeting on 16 June will be in ~RDG's new space {(we are
your neighbors rnow, so there goes the neighborhood

40of4 SEECRETANOFORN 1/14/2016 1:30 PM
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From:
To:
Ce:
Bece:
Subject: Re: RDG Tasking for IC Psychologists Jessen and Mitchell

Date: 6/20/2003 2:19:53 PN

- Here are our comments on the possible taskings for the IC
psychologists.

1) Realizing that the IC's are already en route to to begin e
pre-Guantanamo assessment of the detainess, we're still concerned that they
are

not the right candidates for that particular task--and that for several
reasons .

ve may want tce send someone else later. BSo far as we're aware, their
expertise

in assessing folks for long term incarceration is very limited. Interviewing

those who return from relatively short-duration detentions is not likely very
relevant to what our detainees will be facing. If it is the best we have,
then

we again suggest is probably a better candidate. A psychiatrist,
he certainly has debriefed more released hostages than the two ICs combined,
and doesn't have the baggage of having applied enhancec measures. Even
though

the ICs are very hright folks who have made an effort to forge a positive
relationship with their subjects, no professional in the field would credit
their later judgements as psychologists assessing the subjects of their
enhanced measures. They could be right on target, but if some untoward
cutcome

is later to be explained, their sole use in this role will be indefensible.
There is just too much extraneocus at play--with both Az wanting Lo be friends

S0 as not to return to the former situation, and the psychologists wanting to

be friends so that bygones are bygones--to view even a —orrecti assessment as

valid.
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2} In terms of program development, the ICs clearly have experience that
will

be useful to many individuals, mostly drawn from their SERE days. While they
have more exposure to our current situation than others, this is largely
related to an interrogation scenario that will probably not often be
repeated.

As others gain more current, more relavant experience, their input will be
less

useful--so it will be important that {egos notwithstanding) they are not
encouraged to think their experience sats them above anyone else. As IC's
they

should only be consultants, on request.

'3) The ethics tasking, as we discussed, needs to be clarified. We think the
ICs have much to offer in the area of standards of conduct in our program--
beth :

for interrogators and psychologists, primarily drawn from the established
standards of the SERE program. That is different from "ethics,"” per se,
which

among other things would relate to blending the roles of interrogator and
psychologist. Since a major ethics issue for psycholocists will be exactly
the .

legitimacy of blending these roles (or alternating betwzen them), it will be
important that someone other than these two ICs handle that task. They
already

occupy an extraordinarily minority position on this (and one contrary to SERE
practice), and will simply have no credibility among staff psychologists,

The

ethics part actually is straightforward, and the existing code of ethics
already address this in clear terms. So, we are left here with tasking on
standards of conduct--still a very important assignment.

4) We enthusiastically endorse the proposal that the ICs undertake a
baseline

review of the interrogation and debriefing tactics, techniques and procedures
currently underway. I would make this their first priority, and even expand
the assignment beyond your description~-to look at nen-miliraty models and
really look at measurable outcomes within our own experience.

5) The paper on how memory works also is a good project.

SECRETH/NOFEORN
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6) Collecting information on how similar programs are run, and making
recommendations for our program is also worthwhile. Having them play central
roles in designing and overseeing our program is probably inappropriate,
since

this will be the reinvention of a program on which there is substantial
internal expertise and historical knowledge. And this is particularly the
case

in the area of personnel selection, where we have a wealth of experience, we
would welcome informed suggestions, but think this is distinctively an
internal staff responsiblity.

S0, in sum, we think the ICs greatest potential contribution will be in the
studies in paras 4-5 above, that a circumscribed role in the paras 3 and &
tasking has some merit, but that the range of tasks in para 1 are
inappropriate

for a combination of reasons.

Final point of concern. One of our RMOs just returned from several days
observing the Ft. Bragg SERE course. He learned from the senior SERE
psychologist there--who has spoken to our assembled staff in the past and
knew

this was an Agency doctor--that the two ICs told him that we were using the
waterboard and other enhanced measures on ocur detainees. We've been
extremely

careful in our very limited conversations with SERE folks to say our interest
in these techniques related only to evaluating them for possible use within a
training program, and are confident that was CTC's guidance also. I hope
these

folks are not promoting their importance among their colleagues by
inappropriate disclosures; you may want to check with them.

SECRET/NOFORN
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28 January 2003

MEMORANDUM FOR: Deputy Director for Operations

VIA: Associate Deputy Director for
Operations/Counterintelligence

FROM:

SUBJECT: : Death Investigation —wéﬁimﬁégigﬁnmuiﬂA

SCOPE OF INVESTIGATION

1. {83 The scope of this investigaticn was to
determine the cause 0of the ;November 2002 death of Gul
RAHMAN, a member of Hezbi Islami, who was being detained at

|
an:

COBALT prison facility ¥known to CIA
personnel as . | RAHMAN had been undergoing
interrogation by CIA personnel,; ) - |
§ "Information
contained in this report regarding the background of
| . as well as the treatment of detainees at

COBALT

-is provided for background and .context as it
relates To the investigation of the death of Gul RAHMAN.

COBALT

TOP-SECREF/ XY A&"l"g'
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“TOP—SECRET/ /XY

‘SUBJECT: 5) Death Investigation - Gul RAHMAN

COBALT
BACKGROUND ON
 COBALT
2. (15) is a prison located
This prison, which became operational on | September 2002,

is designed to house high value terrorist targets during
the screening and igt;errogation phase of their detention,

and is viewed by 1 SBtation as critical to Station’s
efforts to exploit these targets for intelligence and
imminent threat information.? 3 % | was set up with

isolation of the detainee being the - primary goal Each
detainee’s interaction with the outside world was intended
to be limited to brief contact with the guards and more
extensive contact with his CIA interrogators. This allows
CIA personnel to control almost all aspects of the
detainees’ existence.®

3. 4P8) The construction of the prison was funded by

.CIA

. There are 20 cells located insice the prison
The cells are

stand-alone concrete boxes.,

All cells have a metal ring

ISep 2002 {Attachment 1)
Sep 2002 (Attachment 2)
IMay 2002 (Attachment 3)

LJun 2002 {Attachment 4)
1Jun 2002 {Attachment §}

* Jun 2002 (Attachment 6)

d Oct 2002 {Attachment 7)

o AW N -

COBALT
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-attached low to the wall to which prisoners are secured.
Four of the cells have high bars that run between two walls
to which prisoners can be secured. These four cells are

| The cellblock windows are
covered with two coats of black paint and heavy curtains
making the cellblock completely dark. Stereo speakers in
the cellblock play constant music to prevent communications
between detainees.® ?

4. {¥S) The prison is protected by |

guard force.'® ‘guards protect the exterior of the
facility

guards are stationed in the interior of the building and
handle the prisoners.:. 1nterlor guards =

| According to

Station personnel, although the prison guards lack
significant training, all are very professicnal in their
duties. No station officer has ever witnessed or
"documented an instance of prisoner mistreatment by’
guard or witnessed any animosity by the guards toward the™
prisoners. Nc interrogator has ever seen or documented ~—
signs of phvsical abuse on any of the prisoners.

e iMay 2002 [Attachment 8)

4 IOct 2002 (Attachment 9)
10 lJun 2002 (Attachment 10)
il Sep 2002 (Attachment 11)
12 Interview of INov 2002 {Attachment 12)
13 nterview of! Nov 2002 (Attachment 13)
14 Interview of! “Nov 2002 {Attachment 14)
3 . .
-
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According to COS| 'the guards are verv
professional |

For the most part, the guafds are

"v}ggeyg;e of the identities of the prisoners. According to

' in- some instances the prisoners have told. the
guards “their identities| ;

% According to " the

guards are not privy to 1nformat10n derived from the
interrogations of the p}rlsoners.

COBALT

5. ¢23) Since the establishment of/

Station has made an effort to provide traln:mg to the

_guards |

; ! With no
“exception, individuals interviewed stated that the guards
treated prisoners well and "by-the-book," following all
directions regarding the treatment and handling of
prisoners. On  |June 2002, two and a half months prior to
Erecelpt of its first prisoner, Station cabled

On

June 2002, Headquarters ‘concurred in principle with the

vneed _to ademuately train|

I On| June 2002, Station sent a cable
15 Interview of N Mmﬁ?\Dec 2002 (Attachment 15)
YéInterview of Nov 2002 {Attachment 13}

Oct 2002 (Attachment 7)
\Jun 2002 {Attachment 5)
Jun 2002 {Attachment 16}
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to Headguarters requesting that Headquarters identify staff
personnel or independent contractors who could provide the

training ?° on 3 July 2002,
Headquarters cabled «««««««««« and notified them that they were
still attempting to ‘identify a tralnlng program, but had
been unable to do so thus far.? Some time between 3 July

2002 and 18 August 2002, the idea of using the US Bureau or
Prisons (BOP) personnel to provide training to thei ]
guard force was suggested. On @ |August 2002,

Station sent a cable to Headquarters stating the e following
regarding the guard force:

A_nggest update on the -
“status of BOP personnel TDY - toc train the
guards and prison staff. Station believes this
training will be essential. given the near certainty
that we will be called to account for cur efforts at
some future date; either within the USG or to the

international community (through the ICRC.)” *?

Some time betweengw September and the arrival of the first

prisoner on . September 2002, ' Station utilized its
—OWn_ resources to provide. initial tralnlng for the interior
guards. |

LwéfEiion provided training to the guards on now to handle,

move, restrain prisoners, lock them in cells, and handle

them safely and securely.

; | Between ‘August and September 2002,
Headquarters was able to make arrangements ‘with the BOP to
"provide training in lguard
force at ' Onl September 2002, ‘cabled

Headquarters and noted that they looked forward to
receiving a timeline for the TDY of BOP personnel

e

2 Jun 2002 {Attachment 17)
2 Jul 2002 (Attachment 18)
2 Aug 2002 {Attachment 17}
# interview of | Dec 2002 [Attachment 15)
S S
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indicating “sooner is better.”2! on, November 2002, {
BOP officers arrived in| \and trained thre
guards from| | November. BOP instructors trained o

___guards in restralnt techniques, escort procedures,
security checks, entrance procedures, cell searches, watch
calls, and patdown searches. BOP also made a number of

recommendations to improve the security of the prison.?®

6. 5} prison guards are

cooperative with.  Ipersonnel.
T

“highly

28 The guards; e

Ido whatever they are told to do by

personnel and often will not do anything until

told to do so by personnel.”® All activities that

Station officers wish to undertake at the facility are

independent action. If a guard noticed that a prisoner was

cold, he could give the prisoner a blanket.?® That said,
believed that the

guards would take no indepvendent action at that prison

without permission from; .

‘the guards‘ idoes not want any

of the prisoners to dle, no matter how good or bad they

are. He told the guards that this (ensuring the well being

_of the prisoner) was their responsibility.’* According to

'Station has recently made an effort to instill this

krespo}ls:o.blllty in the guard force by app01nt1ng one of the

| {Attachment 20)
{Attachment 21)

‘% interview of| INov 2002 (Attachment 13)

_ TDec2002 |attachment 15}
Sep 2002 (Attachment 11}

27 interview of __

2 |nterview of! INov 2002 (Attachment 13)
3 interview of Nov 2002 {Attachment 13)
3 Interview of! 'Nov 2002 {Attachment 22}

6
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guardsf;g§pgg§;b;e for detainee safety. This particular
guard, | ____ has been identified bv Station personnel

and BOP personnel as cne of the best __iguards.*

7. 5 Heating and cooling are problematic at the
prison facility. There is no insulation in the bulldlng
and no central heating or coollng.\
;  The facility is hot in the
summer and cold in the winter. There are ceiling fans that

e S2 208 CIA Staff

help cool the facility in the summer. According towamwwmvj Office
in late September 2002, Station purchased 10 electric r
heaters that were delivered in early October 2002. Five of
the electric heaters were placed in the administrative
section of the prison and five were placed in the guard
shacks. They could not place any of the electrical heaters
in the prisopner housing area;

1 In mid- October 2002, five gas heaters
All five gas heaters were placed in the guard towers. In
early November 2002, five more gas heaters were purchased
and delivered at a later date. These heaters were placed
in the housing area of the prison. _These heaters were in
place prior to RAHMAN's -death. Onl ‘November 2002, the
day of RAHMAN’s death, five more gas heater= were ordered

.and set up in ‘the housing area circa November 2002. On
CIA Staff j | November 2002, 15 more gas heaters Were ordered and set
Officer up sometime in Oerpmbpr 2002, Some were used to replace
broken heaters.?® According to  thers are
approximately 15 gas heaters curre—f“y set up in the
ClA Staff prisoner housing area. : ‘has now placed a
Officer thermometer inside the housing area 5
/
2 interview of Dec 2002 {Attachment 15}
Binterview of ‘Dec 2002 (Attachment 15)
34 otus Note from INov 2002 {Attachment 23)
s interview of DEC 2002 {Attachment 15)
e g

N ”~
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{ stated that he has requested

that the guards record the temperatures in the housing area
each day.’ » COBALT

8. t5} From the conception of

Headguarters and Station have made efforts to ensure

_the phy51cal health of the detainees. OanAJune 2002,

*Station can support 1n1t1al,rnonfemerqency medical
treatment with use of Station medics.

|
|
J
| Station haé-

<requested “that a small medical room be constructed | |

so that detainees may receive medical care
re 37

b

via visiting medical personnel within the facility.

ssinterviewof 19 Dec 2002 {Attachment 15)
a7 jun 2002 {Atfachment 24)
s Jul 2002 (Attachment 25)
L. o= SN - ,
8 ‘3\ 9.\% O\
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Note: CIA was already funding the. operation of the
facility to include all prison expenses.

0. 59 According to 2 CIA medlc@l
officer TDY to , at the end of August, 2002 ,
had agreed to prov:Lde ‘physician to examine twl?é'y
prisoners. As of | November 2002, has failed to do

so. As a result, Station assumed by~ défault the
~responsibility of taking care of the prisoner’s hgaltbwc;are
_needs. | _|stated that he first visited on COBALT

\November 2002, shortly after his arrival for his secoﬁd

“TDY to istated that if a prisoner

becomes 111, he and another Station medic go to m- COBALT

defined. ~'stated that he called the Actinag Ch:l_e.f
of the Office of Medical Services)

{(OMS ~  and asked for guidance. | was told, “the
Hlppocratlc Oath states that if someoné is sick, vou treat

them.” 40

11. %) dated‘ November 2002,
provides a detailed outline of Station’s medical support to
the detainees at, =+ The cable is quoted below in
its entirety: COBALT
SUBJECT: _ STATION MEDICAL SUPPORT TO
DETAINEES i ‘
REF: NONE

TEXT:k

1. ACTION REQUIRED: NONE, FYI ONLY.

 Aug2002 (Attachment 26)
“ Interview of INov 2002 {Attachment 27)
9 .
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2. .STATION MEDICAL PERSONNEL PRCVIDE SUPPORT TO

CIA RENDITIONS AND
‘  DETAINEE PROGRAMS. | |MEDICAL PERSONNEL
ARE ALL| "~ PHYSICIAN ASSISTANTS OR NURSE
PRACTITIONERS. ONE TO TWO | PERSONNEL ARE ASSIGNED
TDY |AT ANY GIVEN. TIME.

3. __ STANDARD RENDITION PROCEDURE REQUIRES THAT

ONE MEDICAL OFFICER PARTICIPATE IN ALL RENDITIONS. THE
REASON FOR THIS IS THREEFOLD. FIRST, TO ENSURE THAT THE
DETAINEE DOES NOT HAVE ANY ITEMS CONCEALED ON HIS PERSON
WHICH MIGHT BE USED AS A WEAPON (THROUGH A COMPLETE FULL-
BODY AND CAVITY SEARCH). SECOND, TO DETERMINE THE INITIAL
MEDICAL CONDITION OF THE DETAINEE; AND THIRD, TO STABILIZE
THE CONDITION COF THE DETAINEE DURING THE RENDITION -
INCLUDING SEDATION IF NECESSARY.

. STATION MEDICAL PERSONNEL ALSO

PROVIDE SUPPLEMENTAL MEDICAL SUPPORT ON AN AS-NEEDED BASIS.
THTS TYPICALLY CONSISTS OF TREATMENT FOR ACUTE MEDICAL
PROBLEMS AND FOLLOW-UP TREATMENT FOR PRE-EXISTING MEDICAL

CONDITIONS.

10
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i

. P.______THE COBALT
LAST REGULAR ASSISTANCE VISIT TO. : [WAS CONDUCTED

FROM | INOVEMBER 2002. THE NEXT PLANNED VISIT WILL BE

DURING f WEEK OF NOVEMBER 2002. BASED ON THE LAST
COBALT | VISIT, FOLLOW-UP CARE WAS PROVIDED TO SEVERAL

INMATES VROM” ‘NOVEMBER 2002,

COBALT | DURING THE MOST RECENT
SCHEDULED VISIT TO | {‘ DETAINEES WHO PREVIQUSLY
IDENTIFIED THEMSELVES AS DIABETICS WERE TESTED FOR BLOOD

SUGAR LEVELS (WHICH WERE NORMAL), [ \DETAINEE WITH A

VARIETY OF PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS WAS PRESCRIBED FIVE
DIFFERENT MEDICATIONS, AND SEVERAL DETAINEES WERE

COBALT PRESCRIBED MILD PAIN RELIEVERS. URINE TESTING OF THE
INMATES INDICATED ALL OF THE | \DETAINEES WERE

COBALT RECEIVING SUFFICIENT NOURISHMENT AND HYDRATION. ALL OF THE
DETAINEES AT | (WITH THE EXCEPTION OF GUL RAHMAN)

HAVE BEEN FULLY COOPERATIVE WITH THE MEDICAL PERSONNEL IN
RESPONDING TO QUESTIONS ABOUT THEIR HEALTH AND WELFARE.
THE ONE EXCEPTION, GUL RAHMAN, WOULD ONLY STATE THAT
"THANKS TO GOD, ALL IS WELL” IN RESPONSE TO QUESTIONING.

12. (ST Additionally, prisoners with significant OBALT
health problems are not accepted at] ) During a COBAL

proposed rendition of a detainee with a] _  condition,
Station provided the following guidance: “If Subject

COBALT “does have a significant| | condition, Subject should not
be transferred to | . Appropriate specialized
medical care is not available! | No

unlawful enemy combatant wi th . pre-existing medical

conditions can be brought to | If there is reason
 COBALT

11
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to believe that Subiject has al ‘condition. he should be
transferred |

TREATMENT OF PRISONERS
COBALT

3., was constructed as a result of
shortcomings in the handling of detainees!

COBALT

; ] ‘'was designed to
isolate and enhance control over the prisoners.*?
CIA Staff e ‘ _—
Officer 14. 159 ai Officer, is
. : responsible for detainee affairs at] 'Station, and is

CIA Staff . viewed by Station managementkgggmggrsonnel zs the “site
manager.” arrlved in! lon ;August 2002. CIA Staff

ffi e r
Officer ! dld nct know he would Officer

Prior to his arrival in |

be responsible for detalnee affalrs. ' stated that he

CIA Staff
Officer “operations prlor to his arrival ln;__

e e e —

According to.  [this training provided Officer
him with some understanding ‘as to how prisoners would react
to various handling, treatment, and interrogation methods.

COBALT [ was approximately one month short of being

‘operational at the time of larrival. In addition

to assuming control over the final construction details of
OBALT | 'was aTSo responsible for coordinating

interrogations i and coordinating renditions of

hlgh and medium value terrorist targets throughout
. In conjunction with his

‘Escape {SERE) tralnlngi 7777 : N ; CIA Staff

ClA Staff
Officer

ClA Staff
Officer

IOct 2002 [Attachment 28)
,AprZOOZ(AﬁcchmenTZW
12
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COBALT CIA Staff Of‘flcer
duties as “site manaéer,”;wm wﬁﬁn”ya§4re§ponsible o
for devising the operating procedures for| These OBALT

procedures concerned the handling and treatment of
prisoners and the operation of the facility.??

15. £5) John B. Jessen (known by the name Bruce), a
Psychologist who works for CIA as an independent
contractor, and is involved in the use of enhanced
interrogation techniques with high value targets, spent

two and a half weeks at %_WM 777777777777 jfrom early-to mid- CIA Staff
November 2002. Jessen worked directly with lon Officer
RAHMAN and other detainees at| | Jessen has a

Ph.D. in Clinical Psychology, and spent 20 vears on active

- duty with the US Air Force as a Psychologist. After his

retirement from the Air Force, Jessen spent eight years as
a DOD civilian Psychologist. During his tenure with the
Air Force and DOD, Jessen worked on captivity related

" issues. While on active duty, he served as a Psychologist

with the Joint Personnel Recovery Agency. While employed
as a cilvilian with DOD, Jessen was the Senior Psychologist
for the SERE program. Jessen was able to observe

operations at 'and had discussions with = ———— CIAStaff

regarding methods of handling, treating, and interrogating Officer
prisoners. .Jessen also made some recommendations -to |

to improve operations at the TaCLllt;[ _Jessen stated” COBALT

; |did a great job settingup; = T Jessen

described - A; as being very brlght motlvated and CIA Staff
possessing good intuition. Jessen _g@_igL . was doing a Officer
great job with the guard force. @ _was very level

headed and acted in a measured manner. Jessen said the
atmosphere of the facllity was excellent for the type of

prisoners kept there - “nasty, but safe.” Jessen commented
that although! ‘had never worked in this line of
business prlofmfo arriving in| ' he did not see any
*hiccups” in security or prisoner safety. Jessen commented CIA Staff
that he would be pleased to work with: in_the future.  Officer
—and believed that‘ | should be a member of

CIAStaﬁ

Officer
4 |nterview of IDec 2002 (Attachment 15)
44 \nterview of John B. Jessen, 9 Jan 2003 {Attachment 30}
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COBALT
16. (89 Although;mgg_inw:ldoes not have a written
set of Standard Operating Procedures {(a flaw noted by
Jessen), ~__has established a standard method of

operation. ‘For security reasons, prisoners are brought to
the facility with their hands and feet shackled.

Blindfolds are placed over their eyes and a hood is placed
over their heads. Ear plugs are also placed in their ears.
This is done so that prisoners have no knowledge of where
they are being housed, cannot hear what is being said
around them, and have no idea if they are alone or with
other prisoners. Additionally, it prevents any form of
communication between prisoners. Prisoners are handled by
guards in complete silence. Hand signals are used by the
guards to communicate with each other. Prisoners are
dressed in sweatsuits and adult diapers. The diapers are
used for sanitary reasons during transportation, and as a
means to humiliate the prisoner. When priscners are
delivered to their cell, one hand or foot is shackled to
the wall. This is done for the safety of the guard.

Later, the manner in which a prisoner is shackled is based
on his level of cooperation and the danger he presents to
the guards. However, all prisoners are shackled in some
manner. If they are not shackled to the wall, their hands
and feet may be shackled. If a prisoner is uncooperative,
or presents a significant physical threat tc the guards, he
may be shackled in a “short chain” position. This method
was taught te the guards by BOP instructors as a safer
alternative to hog-tying prisoners. Hog-tying prisoners
has resulted in a number of deaths in the US, and the
*short chain” method is safer for the prisoners while still
providing a higher degree of safety and security for the
guards. In the *short chain” method, the prisoner’s hands
are shackled together as are his feet. Then a short chain
is used to shackle the hands to the feet. This keeps a '
prisoner’s hand shackled within several inches of his feet.
The prisoner’s feet are then shackled to the wall. This
provides for the maximum degree of control over the
prisoner while allowing for prisoner safety.*

CIA Staff Officer 7
45 interview of Dec 2002 {Attachment 15)
e 14
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17. ) Prior to the guards’ departure from the
cell, the hood, blindfold, and ear plugs are taken from the
priscner. Prisoners are housed in total darkness.fwwn_wwm¢ CIA Staff
stated that this is done for a couple of reasons. L - Officer
stated that he wanted to disorient prisoners so they didn’t._
know if it was dav or night.

Additionally, music is played in the prisoner housing area

24 hours a day. This is done to prevent prisoners from
communicating with each other.®® .

18. 48} Sleep deprivation.is also used to enhance
successful interrogation. The decision to use slieep
deprivation is made by the individual CIA officer who is
working with a particular prisoner. When sleep deprivation
is utilized, the prisoner is chained by one or both wrists
to a bar running across the ceilinag of the cell. This CIA Staff
forces the prisoner to stand.|  stated that he Officer
consulted with Jessen and was told that no prisoner should '
undergc more than 72 hours of sleep deprivation because
lucidity begins to decline and gquestioning become
ineffective.? During our interview with Jessen, he stated
that sleep deprivation could be used indefinitely without
harming the prisoner; however, you could not chain him
overhead indefinitely.

19, 8y Often, prisoners who possess significant or
imminent threat information are stripped to their diapers
during interrogation and placed back into their cells
wearing only diapers. This is done solely to humiliate the
prisoner for interrogation purposes. When the prisoner
soils a diaper, they are changed by the guards. Sometimes
the guards run out of diapers and the prisoners are placed
back in their cells in a handcrafted diaper secured by duct
tape. If the guards don’t have any available diapers, the
prisoners are rendered to their cell nude.?®

CIA Staff Officer
4 Interview of IDec 2002 (Attachment 15)
7 Interview of Dec 2002 {Attachment 15}
<8 Interview of IDec 2002 {Attachment 15)
| e i -
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20. 45} Prisoners’ cells are austere. A prisoner
begins his confinement with nothing in his cell except a
bucket used for human waste. Prisoners are given rewards

- for cooperation. Rewards can consist of a light, ®foamies”

for the prisoners’ ears (blocks out the music), a mat to
sleep on, extra blankets, etc. Additionally, a luxury room
has been built which has a light, & rocking chair, a table,
and carpeting on the floor. Prisoners are not punished for
lack of cooperation. Instead, rewards that they have
received for cooperation are taken from them if they become
uncooperative.*’

21. 59 When guards move prisoners from their cell

“to the interrogation room, usually .guards enter the

cell with a flashlight. A hood is placed over the
prisoner’s head and he is lead to the interrogation room in
shackles. The quards do not speak to the prisoners and all
communication between the guards is completed with hand

signals. Once the detainee is placed in the interrogation
room the guards depart, and the hood is remcved byi

. personnel. Every effort is made to ensure that the only

person a detainee communicates with is his CIA
interrogator.>®

DEATH OF GUL RAHMAN

22. (8} Gul RAHMAN was a Hezbi Islami official from
Wardak province, Afghanistan, who was known to interact
with and support Al Qa’ida. He was known tc be a close
associate of Gulbuddin Hekmatyar and Abu Abcd Al-RAHMAN Al-

_Najdi. ; !
Jessen stated that| 7
Station .
' CIA Staff Officer
29 Interview of Dec 2002 [Attachment 15}
s interview of Dec 2002 [Attachment 15)
51 Alec @?2002 [Attachment 31)
52 Alec! _Nov 2002 (Attachment 32}
s3] Nov 2002 (Attachment 33)
E 16 ,
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was very optimistic that they had somebody who was .going to
have some good information.”

23. £5)  RAHMAN was apprehended in Islamabad,

Pakistan on October 2002, during an early morning raid

54 Interview of John B. Jessen. 9 Jan 2003 (Attachment 30)
i iOct 2002 {Attachment 34)
’ 17
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27.

£5) . On i  November 2002, Headanarrers aareed in._

transferring him to ‘ 

'COBALT

INov 2002 {Attachment 37)

‘Oct 2002 (Attachment 34)
Nov 2002 {Attachment 35)

18
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29. sy Later that day, RAHMAN were flown
from - ‘where they were subsequently

COBALT

CIA Staff

,iransferred to. 88 Upon RAHMAN’s arrival at
he Wa5 §iven a physical examination and all of
“his Personal clothes and effects were removed. He was

-dressed in standard prison garb and placed in a single

Officer

CIA Staff

cell.™ | described the standard prison garb as a

sweatshiTt and sweat pants. RAHMAN was alsc wearing an

adult diaper that was placed on him in - This is
done because prisoners are not allowed to use bathroom
facilities on the airplane during rendition, and later as a
‘means of humiliation. ‘According to standard operating
procedures, one of RAHMAN's hands or feet would have been

shackled to the wall when he was placed in his cell.

Officer

According to! the physical examinaticn of RAHMAN

COBALT

took place in | ' stated that there are a
number of reasons for the”‘ﬁy31cal examination. One reason
is so that Station can conduct a body cavity search to

ensure the prisoner is not carrying a weapon or some other
substance. The second reason is so that Station can ensure

that the prisoner is_in good enough condition to travel and CIA Staff

be housed at! . Lastly, | indicated that the Officer

physical examlnaflo “Ferves to document if a prisoner has
been beaten or traumatized. The person conducting the

so! Nov 2002 {Attachment 38}
o ___ Nov 2002 (Attachment 39)
€2| \NE\? 2002 {Attachment 40)
19
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CIA Staff Officer

e ]

physical exam would note such observations. Jalso
indicated that the prisoner would be photographed. &
search of cable traffic related to RAHMAN found no record
of any reporting indicating Vt}gra‘\t any injuries or health

CIA Staff conditions were noted. = 'stated that they keep no
Officer medical records on the prisoners and the digital
photographs taken of RAHMAN at rendition have long been
; 63 &4
overwritten. COBALT
30. 3 According to Jessen, he was atl lin

early November 2002, in conjunction with the interrogations
of a few other priscners. Although Jessen’s recollections
were fuzzy, Jessen recalled that he might have. beengresent

CIA Staff during the first interrogation of RAEMAN at | COBALT
Officer Jessen recalled that rapproached him, and they

- discussed strategies to use during his interrogation.
CIA Staff Jessen stated that he believes! conducted the first
Officer interrogation, and he watched from behind the lights.

Jessen stated that they talked afterwards and collaborated
on some approaches he might want to take.®

" CIA Staff . 31. (53 Cable traffic reflects that on! and

Officer 3 ‘November 2002, and Jessen interrogated RAHMAN.
‘The cable goes on to- state that despite 48 hours of sleep
deprivation, auditory overload, total darkness, isolation,
a cold shower, and rough treatment, RAHMAN maintained a
high interrogation resistance posture and continued to deny
that he was RAHMAN, despite overwhelming evidence to the
contrary. His resistance posture suggested a sophisticated
level of resistance training. The cable cited several
examples of his interrogation resistant behavior:

o Remained steadfast in outright denials {(ignored
obvious facts). ’

o Was unresponsive to provocation.

o Claimed inability to think due to conditions
{cold)

o Complained about poor treatment..

CIA Staff Officer

& Lotus Note from ol \Jan 2003 (Attachment 41)
84 Interview of Dec 2002 TAtfachment 15]
& interview of John B. Jessen, 7 Jan 2003 (Attachment 30)
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o Complained about the viclation of his human
rights.

o Remained con51stently unemotlonal calm, and
composed.

o Blatantly lied while attempting to appear’
sincere in his desire to cooperate.

o Consistently used his cover story.

o Displayed no anxiety {(calmly picked at his
skin/nails during confrontations with damning
evidence against him.

o Was unfazed by physical and psychological
confrontations.®*

32. 3} Cable traffic reflects that sleep
deprivation for RAHMAN began almost immediately after his

arrival at, Jessen stated that he believed that
RAHMAN' 5 sleep deprlvatlon started from the beginning.
According to ;, RAHMAN’s clothes were taken from him

at this point, and he was left wearing a diaper. During
the period of sleep deprivation, RAHMAN’s arms were
shackled to a bar that ran between the walls of the cell.
This prevented RAHMAN from sitting down.®’ *

33. =p] Durlng the first few days of RAHMAN'

incarceration at| cable traffic aiso reflects
m;natfhe received 3¢5 Id §HBwer. During cur interview with
' he indicated that RAHMAN received a cold shower

"’Eé‘cféuse the water heater was not working. Jessen stated
that he was deliberately given a cold shower as a
deprivation technique. Cable traffic tends to support
Jessen’s statements. Jessen stated that after RAHMAN
received the cold shower, he saw RAHMAN standing with the
guards. Jessen stated that RAHMAN was shivering and
showing early signs of hypothermia. Jessen instructed the
guards ‘to provide RAHMAN with a blanket, which they did.%® 7°

34. +5) Cable traffic also reflects chat during his
first two days of incarceration, RAHMAN underwent *rough .

&8 WJ Nov 2002 {Attachment 33)
67 Inferview of John B. Jessen, 9 Jan 2003 (Attachment 30)
8 Interview of| iDec 2002 |Attachment 15}
& Interview of Dec 2002 [Attachment 15)
70 Interview of John B. Jessen, 9 Jan 2003 (Attachment 30}
21 . 2;'
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CIA Staff Officer

treatment.” L stated that they occasionally pushed
and shoved RAHMAN while he had a hood over his head to
discorient him and scare him. Jessen described witnessing
what he termed “a rough takedown.” Jessen stateéd that when
a detainee is strong and resilient, you have to establish
control or you are not going to get anywhere. So you try
different techniques to try to get him to open up. One of .
them is rough threatening treatment. The treatment is
never to the point that you hurt the prisoner physically,

CIA Staff you simply want To instill fear and despair in the

Officer prisoner. . came up with the idea of the hard

takedown and asked Jessen for his thoughts. While Jessen
has not used this technique at facilities at which he has
worked, and had never seen one conducted, he thought it was
worth trying. According to Jessen, there were . .

AAAAAAA ___|CIA officers from the | team.
Each one had a role during the takedown and it was
thoroughly planned and rehearsed. They opened the door of
RAHMAN’s cell and rushed in screaming and yelling for him

i to “get down.” They dragged him outside, cut off his

i clothes and secured him with Mylar tape. They covered his
head with a hood and ran him up and down a long corridor
adjacent to his cell. They slapped him and punched him
several times. Jessen stated that although it was obvious
they were not trying to hit him as hard as they could, a
couple of times the punches were forceful. As they ran him
along the corridor, a couple of times he fell and they
dragged him through the dirt (the floor outside of the
cells is dirt). RAHMAN did acquire a number of abrasions
on his face, legs, and hands, but nothing that required
medical ‘attention. (This may account for the abrasions
found on RAHMAN’s body after his death. RAHMAN had a
number of surface abrasions on his shoulders, pelvis, arms,

legs, and face.) At this point, RAHMAN was returned te his CIA Staff
cell and secured. Jessen stated that; =~ may have Officer
CIA Staff spoken to RAHMAN for a few moments, but he did not know
Officer what ' said. Jessen stated that after something like

this 1s done, interrogators should speak to the prisoner to
 “give them something to think about.”’ ™

71 Interview of " IDec 2002 (Attachment 15)
22 \nterview of John B. Jéssen, 9 Jan 2003 {Attachment 30}
22 K
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35. 5] Oni_ﬁ | November 2002, xStatlon forwarded
a cable to Headquarters 1nd1cat1ng “that to date, RAHMAN had
provided no information to his interrogators. He still
refused ‘to admit his true name was Gul RAHMAN. He appeared
somgghat fatlgued relative to his appearance upon arrival
at | and remained resolutely defiant as
1nterrogators attempted to obtain information from him.
Station believed that physical pressure was unlikely to

change RAHMAN’s attitude; but alternative psychological

_Pressures mav_have more success. .

“with RAHMAN. “RAAMAN had spent the days since his last

 36. {8) oOn |  November 2002, Station Officers
- Jessen, | ‘again met

session with Station officers in cold conditions with
minimal food or sleep. RAHMAN appeared inccherent for
portlons of this session, but was completely lucid by mid-
session.’® During this session, RAHMAN finally admitted.
that he was_indeed Gul RAHMAN. -

73 iNov 2002 {Attachment 42)
74 Nov 2002 (Aﬁcchmem‘ 43) : J(
e — 23 L\ .
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cable detailing this session reads .as
follows: '
“Assessment: RAHMAN was flnally showing the results
COBALT of his stay at \durlng this session. While
he was still clearly resisting, we believe he may have
chosen to compromise somewhat in exchange for improved
conditions. However, it was also possible that RAHMAN
was so fatigued that he was unable to consistently
stay with his cover story even if he wished to do so.
During portions of interrogation, RAHMAN was confused
as to his location, and the passage of time. At _other
times he would forget what he had been asked;w J
would have to recapture his attention. It is T
difficult to know precisely how much of his behavior
was feigned and how much was a result of his physical
and psychological condition; however, IC Jessen’s
impression was that he continues to use ‘health and
wélfare’ behaviors and complaints as a major part of
his resistance posture. After the session, RAHMAN was
afforded some improvement in his conditions.
Interrogators plan to reinterview RAHMAN on
'November.”'®
— CIA Staff Officer
37. = and Jessen both attributed this small
interrogation breakthrough to the pressure techniques used
on RAMMAN. Jessen stated that he believed RAHMAN would
have never made the admission without the pressures placed
on him. Jessen stated that he considered RAHMAN’Ss
admission of his identity as a breakthrough but did not
believe that RAHMAN had been “*broken.” Jessen stated that
he believes RAMMAN made a compromise. He knew he was in
trouble and knew we had a lot of evidence that he was
RAHMAN. Jessen believes that RAHMAN knew that he could
give up his identity and possibly get a little better
treatment, but still protect the information that was
important to him.’® 77 :
755_,.. T ‘Nov 2002 (Attachment 43)-
s Tnferview of John B. Jessen, 9 Jan 2003 (Attachment 30)
7 Interview of iDec 2002 [Attachment 15)
' 24 ;F;
TOPSEERET/ KT 9\\*’

Salim v. Mitchell - United States Bates #001135
09/26/2016




UNCLASSIFIED / FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

—TOP—SECRET/ /%L
SUBJECT: {3) Death Investigation - Gul RAHMAN

38. 8+ On| November 2002, Headgquarters reguested
that psychologist ICs Jessen and James E. Mitchell conduct
a psychological assessment exam of RAHMAN to determine
which interrogation measures would be required to render
RAHMAN compliant: The cable stated that Headquarters was
motivated to extract any and all operational information on
Al-Qa’'ida and Hezbi Islami from RAHMAN. The cable noted
that it was the assessment 0of the debriefers that RAHMAN

may need to be subjected to enhanced interrcgation measures

to induce him to comply.

| Headquarters requested that the results of thel

H

examination be sent to Headquarters where a determination
on the course of action could be made.’®

39. 18+ On that same day ‘Novembe* 2002), Jessen
conducted a psychological captivity assessment of RAHMAN.
Jessen found that RAHMAN was able to accurately describe
the circumstances, time, and location of his capture he was
able to identify those captured with him. He was slow to
_answer some questions, which Jessen attributed to fatigue
and active resistance. He was able identify all members of
his family, their ages, and places of birth. Questions
that were non-sensitive to his resistance posture were
answered quickly and accurately. Sensitive questions
yielded stalling and prevarication. Throughout this
evaluation and the six interrogation sessions Jessen
participated in up to that point, Jessen saw no signs of
psychopathology. RAHMAN did feign incoherence and profound
confusion at times, but would immediately revert to a
coherent dialogue when it was in his best interest. Jessen
assessed RAHMAN as being of above average intelligence.
Jessen stated that RAHMAN was . a mentally stable individual
exhibiting extraordinary resilience in his ability to
withstand the vicissitudes of captivity and persist in

78 Alec ’- ~ Nov 2002 (Attachment 32)
e 25
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an effective resistance posture. There was no indication
that RAHMAN suffered from any psychopathology nor that he
would be profoundly or permanently affected by continuing
interrogations, to include HVT enhanced measures.’’

40. {(S) In the last paragraph of Jessen’s mental
examination report, Jessen recommended an interrogation
plan for RAHMAN. The last paragraph of the cable reads as
follows: : '

"Interrogation Plan Recommendation: Because of his
[RAHMAN’ s] remarkable physical and psychological
resilience and determination to persist in his
effective resistance posture, employing enhanced
measures is not the first or best option to yield
positive interrogation results. In fact, with such
individuals, increasing physical pressures often
bolsters their resistance. The most effective
interrogation plan for Gul RAHMAN, is to continue
environmental’dep:ivations he is experiencing and
institute a concentrated interrogation exposure
regimen. This regimen would consist of repeated and
seemingly constant interrocgations (18 out of 24 hours
per day). These interrogations should be coordinated
and present with the same set of key subject areas.
Interrogators should have the flexibility and insight
to deviate with the Subject when he begins to move 1in
a desired direction. It will be the consistent and
persistent application of deprivations (sleep loss and

. fatigue) and seemingly constant interrcgations, which
will be most effective in wearing down this Subject’s
resistance posture. It-will be important to manage
the deprivations so as to allow Subject adequate rest
and nourishment so he remains coherent and capable of
providing accurate. information. The station physician
should collaborate with the interrogation team to
achieve this optimum balance. It is reasonable to
expect two weeks or more of this regimen before
significant movement occurs.”®®

79| Nov 2002 (Attachment 44)

bl Nov 2002 {Attachment 44)
I 6 |
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41, _tS) 'On|  November 2002, | ' Station Medical
Officer, . examined Gul RAHMAN and found
no health problems.™

42. 8) The afternoon of _“ November 2002, was the
last time 'saw RAHMAN alive. At that time,

ClAstaff | 'assessed RAHMAN to be .in good overall health.

Officer | ‘noted that RAHMAN had small abrasions on his wrist
‘and ankles as a result of the restraints. His ankle
restraints were loosened, and his hand restraints were

removed when RAHMAN was returned to his cell.® . According

CIA Staff to ~ RAHMAN had complained that he was cold, so
Officer igave him a sweatshirt.®?
43. 63 According to,  Guard , __,g RAHMAN
was fed at 2100 on INovember 2002. Because priscners are

fed one large meal a day, and because of RAHMAN's actions
on the following day, this is the last meal RAHMAN consumed
prior to his death.®

A RAHMAN was fed again at
1500 on| |November 2002.°° "According to numerous sources,
.when the ghards gave RAHMAN his food, he threw the plate,
waterbottle, and waste bucket at the guards. He began
yelling at the gquards, repeating his threat, last stated
approximately one week prior, that he knew their faces and
he would kill them when he got out of the prison. As a CIA Staff
result of his violent behavior, | ___ordered that the Officer
guards put RAHMAN’s hand restraints back on to prevent him .
from taking any other violent actions.®® The guards
proceeded to shackle RAHMAN to the wall of his cell in a
short chain position. (In the "short chain” method, the
prisoner’s hands are shackled together as are his feet.
Then a short chain is used to shackle the hands to the

44. 45) According to!

81 Interview of| INov 2002 {Attachment 27)
82 Nov 2002 (Attachment 40)
@inferviewof " Dec 2002 {Attachment 15}
84 Interview of Nov 2002 {Attachment 45)

: o |nterview of Nov 2002 {Attachment 45)

= 86| INov 2002 (Attachment 40} ,
b 27 . 9}¥/95§
X
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feet. This keeps a prisoner’s hand shackled within several
inches of his feet. The prisoner’s feet are then shackled
to the wall). The only clothing being worn by RAHMAN at

this point was the sweatshirt given to him by| | the CIA Staff Officer

day before. RAHMAN was nude from the waist down. RAHMAN
had been nude, with the exception of a diaper for most of
his incarceration. There is uncertainty as to when
‘RAHMAN’" s diaper had been removed. As of approximately
1500 on; | November 2002, RAHMAN was shackled in a sitting
position 6n bare concrete while nude from the waist down.
The manner in which he was shackled prevented him from
standing upright.

45. 15 The | guards made their normal rounds to

check on the prlsoﬂgfgmon‘V | November 2002, at 2200 and
2300 The guards did not enter RAHMAN’S cell but visually'

Accordlnq to] quardj

‘he. and | chiécked RAHMAN"S ¢ell &t 0400 on

'November 2002. stated that they looked into his

"cell and whistled. RAHMAN Was 51tt1ng in his cell, alive
~and shaking. ¥ At 0800, | guards,

made the rounds to check on the prisoners. According
to the guards, RAHMAN was alive, sitting on the floor and

shaking. | ‘noted that RAHMAN'’s eyes weres open and
blinking. wﬁﬁﬁﬁw“sald RAHMAN’ 5 shaking did not seem unusual
because all of the priscners shake.® According to!

guard i he checked RARHMAN’s cell at 1000. He

noted that the prlsoner was lying on his side.
tapped the door with his nlghtst;ck however, fH’ priébner

did not move. At that point,| 'sought cut . , a
CIA TDY’er who was at. ' ‘tc debrief other
detainees.® TEOBALT
46. +S9 According to interviews conducted with .  COBALT
Agency personnel present at 'when RAHMAN's body ~
was discovered, I were
87 H““* WNov 2002 (Aﬁcchment 40)
® |nterview of 'Nov 2002 (Attachment 45)
89 Interviews of Nov 2002 {Attachment 45)
90 interview of ‘Nov 2002 (Attachment 45)
““““““““““““““““““ 28 ,}fﬂ
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COBALT

all at| MNrtO interrogate other prisoners. At

approx1mately%;000 on November 2002, one of the guards
walked up to; 'and 1nfbrmed_hlm,rhat one of the
prisoners was not moving. The officers went with the
guard to RAHMAN'’s cell. The guard Unlocked the cell and
opened the door. RAHMAN was lying motionless on his right
side with his hands and feet shackled together and his feet
shackled to the wall. There was a small amount of blood
coming from his nose and mouth. RAHMAN was clothed in a
sweatshirt but had no pants. inoted that the only
things in his cell were an empty red waste bucket, and a
food tray with a small piece of bread on-it. |  Istated
that there was rice strewn all over cell. "m_—jgﬁiered the
cell and checked RAHMAN’s pulse. When he &oild not find a
pulse, he begqgmgPR chest compressions. With each chest
compression,, ' noted that more blood would come from his
mouth and mucous from his nose. returned to the area
where interrogations are con@gg§§§:§ﬁ&Mcalled one of the
‘also tried to contact
but he could not find him. Station medic
stated that he recnlved the radio call, but it was Very
cryptic. =~ stated that he did not know why he was

- being summoned to - . stated that he and

(the other Statiorn medic) grabbed

| their medical bags, obtalned transportation, and traveled

~__E-—~O‘ rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr 91 92 93 94
47, 5 When ‘noted that CPR was unsuccessful in
reviving RAHMAN, he ordéred that the cell be sealed until
the doctor arrived. ‘arrived 30-45

_minutes later. Upon arrival, Station personnel greeted

“"and informed him that a prisoner was dead.

went To RAHMAN’s cell znd found him

| Ilying on his side.

 ]examined RAHMAN’s body and

rolled it on both sides. ~ stated that there was no
evidence that the prisqne¥ had been abused and no evidence
of a2 cause of death. ~ inoted that the blood coming
" interview of  Nov 2002 (Attachment 14)
22 Interview of| _INov 2002 [Attachment 46}
9 Interview of! Nov 2002 [Attachment 47)
*4 Interview of lNov 2002 (Attachment 27}
29
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from the nose and mouth was dark and inconsistent with a

wound to that area. jestimated that RAHMAN had

died within the past few hours.”® *°
8. = noted that they found it ,
unusual that the guard commander was not present at the. i

prison at the time of RAHMAN’s death. The interior prison
guards live inside the prison and rarely leave. When

CIA Staff Officer | questioned the guards about the Commander’s absence
he was told that the Commander was at !
said he heard second hand that the guards told lor
pm— 5ITTIE . .

" ithat the Commander had a family emergency.
49. 48} It is important to note that during this
investigation several officers made reference to an

unexpected temperature drop | immediately prior to
RAHMAN’s death. The following are the Accuweather
temperatures§ | during the month of November 2002:

50. sS) No photographs were taken at the scene of

RAHMAN’s death. Later that evening,
delivered a freezer to the facility and RAHMAN’sS body was

frozen until investigating personnel could arrive to
conduct an autopsy.”’

5 interview of “Nov 2002 {Attachment 14)

96 Interview of “TTiNov 2002 (Attachment 27)
7 Interview of; INov 2002 {Attachment 12)

98 Interview of Nov 2002 (Attachment 46)

9 Interview of | Nov 2002 [Attachment 12}
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AUTOPSY

51. Hﬁﬁi Dr. conducted an auﬁopsy on
RAHMAN on' | November 2002. His findings are presented in

_his report entitled, °Final Autposy Findings. CASE #
which is attached to this report. In summary,

| stated, however, that it was his clinical impression
that RAHMAN died of hypothermia.'®

52. % 'stated that hypothermia is a diagnosis
of exclusion. 1In essence, other potential causes are ruled
out one by one until you are left with no other

possibility. | |stated that he conducted a full
anterior.neck dissection. | found no evidence of

hemorrhage in the tissue, muscles, and cartilage around the
neck and no evidence of damage to the Hyoid bone. Injuries

such as these are .common in cases of strangulation. |
examined the soft tissue on the inside of the mouth ana "
found no evidence that pressure was placed over the mouth
as is common in cases of smothering. There was no trauma
+o the teeth. The head and skull were examined and
displayed no evidence of facial or skull fractures and no
blood in the anterior chambers of the eyes.  examined
the chest, trunk, abdomen, and genitals and £HURd o
evidence of trauma. RAHMAN had abrasions to both wrists
and ankles, but there was no evidence of infection. RAHMAN
had a number of scrapes on his shoulders, legs, and hips;
however, there was no bruising around the abrasions
suggesting that there was no blunt force trauma.*®

53.  ¢5) The toxicology was conducted by the |
; ) " The toxicology included testing
For all of the classic poisons. to include cyanide.
Additionally, they tested for substances used in truth
serums and found no evidence of toxic substances. During
the autopsy,| | specifically looked for injection marks
on the body and searched for pill fragments in the mouth
and stomach and found no indication that he had ingested

. . I . ' : 102
any pills or received any injectliomns.

100 Final Autopsy Findings, {Attachment 48)

101 Interview of Dr. Dec 2002 {Attachment 49)

102 Interview of Dr, ‘Dec 2002 (Attachment 49) X
31 E}yk’zﬂ;/
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S4. ¢3) In making the clinical diagnosis of death by

hypothermia,  'based his conclusion and the clinical
environment in which RAHMAN was found and the information
compiled during the investigation. |  |based his

conclusions on the following factors

o RAHMAN’s urine had high catecholamine levels,
which is consistent with hypothermic deaths.

o RAHMAN was seen shivering for a number of hours
immediately prior to his death.

o The environment in which he was hcused was
extremely cold. On the night of his death, the
outside temperature was 31 degrees. The prison
facility is not insulated.

o RAHMAN had not eaten in approximately 36 hours.
No food was found in his stomach during the
autopsy. RAHMAN’s glycogen levels would have
been depleted. Glycogen is a fuel source used by
the body to stay warm.

o RAHMAN was unclothed from the waist down and was
in direct contact with cold concrete. Direct
conduction is a significant cause of heat loss in
the body.

o RAHMAN was chained in a short chain position.
This prevented him from standing up and moving
around to warm his body.

o RAHMAN was dehydrated which is a contributing
factor to hypothermia.'®®

0t nterview of Or.. . Dec 2002 (Attachment 49)
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CONCLUSIONS

The evidence developed during the course of this
investigation suggests the following:

o There is no evidence to suggest that RAHMAN's death
was deliberate. '

o There is no evidence to suggest that RAHMAN was
beaten, tortured, poisoned, strangled, or smothered.

o Hypothermia was the most likely cause of death of Gul
RAHMAN. .

o His death was not deliberate, but resulted from his
incarceration in a cold environment while nude from
the waist down, and shackled in a position that
prevented him from moving around to keep warm.
Additionally, this kept him in direct contact with the
cold concrete floor leading to a loss of bodyheat
through conduction.

o Gul RAHMAN’s actions contributed to his own death. By
throwing his last meal he was unable to provide his
body with a source of fuel to keep him warm.
Additionally, his violent behavior resulted in his
restraint which prevented him from generating body
heat by moving around and brought him in direct
contact with the

concrete floor leading to a loss of bodyheat through
conduction.

Attachments
As stated
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Recognizing and Developing Countermeasures to Al Qaeda Resistance to Interrogation
Techniques: A Resistnce Training Perspective

By

James E. Mitchell, Ph.D.
John B. Jessen, Ph.D.

(8) Executive Summary

This paper discusses the techniques and strategies for resisting interrogabion described in
captured Al Qaeda training manvals and other documents. It suggests methods for recognizing
when sophisticated resistance to interrogation techniques are being cmployed by captured Al
Qaeda operatives from special terrorst cells and outlines strategies for developing
countermeasures, It does so by placing Al Qaeda resistance to interrogation techniques within a
metaphor that illustrates their operational use. Our perspective for reviewing this material is
based on 32 years of combined experience in providing operational support 1o detained U.S.
personnel, training special operations personncel in resistance to interrogation, and debriefing
hostages, peacelime governmental detainees and prisoners of war, We are familiar with how
hostile countries approach interrogation and knowledgeable about how trained captives organize
their resistance efforts. We are not experts in Arab culture or the organizational structure of Al
Queda. However, we have found that while culture does affect perception and behavior, the
cardinal dynamics of resistance 10 interrogation and exploitation are not culturaily dependent.

18) Background :

JTudging from where the manual that served as u primary reference for this paper was found

the Al Qacda operatives most likety to cmploy these
technigues are This
manual describes in detall various resistance techniques and strategies..

In reviewing this material, we have tried to provide more than simply a static description of what
the manual says. We have placed the material within the context of how others have historically
employed these resistance techniques.

[t is apparent from reading the amanual that the thrust of the resistance training
provided to operatives in special terrorist cells focuses on preparation for capture in countries

, the text in these documents converges 1o instruct captives to stick to a pre-
coordinated cover story during interrogation, request legal council, compiain about treatment and
conditions, ask for medical attention, and then report that they have been ortured and mistreated
regardless of actual events. In total, the information contained in the docuinents reveals that a
sophisticated level of resistance training is available o high-risk Al Qaeda operatives.
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5) A Metaphor for Understanding Al Qaeda Resistance
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The Al Queda raining manual asserts that the application of the resistance techniques can render
a captor’s use of coercion less effective,

We choose Lo use this metaphor not to imply that trained Al Qaeda operatives think of resistance
in terms of circles, but rather to illustrate that the use of the circle conce ptis an effective way of
thinking about resistance behavior. This metaphor can help make sense out of a complex and
dynamic situation where sophisticated forms of resistance can be obscured.

{8) A Word About Resistunce Posture

Rezistance technigues are not used in isolation. They are woven into a consistent way of acting
that blends resistance tagtics with the demeanor they present o the captur; this is called a
“resistance posture,” A good resistance posture is a consistent, persisten:. apparently logical way
of acting that enables the captive to appear unatractive as a source of cx ploitaton.
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48) Countermeasures

The point of using countermeasures is to distract cuptives from the primary focus of the
interrogation, lead them to believe that it is futile to continue resisting, or graduaily shape

compliance. Skillfully crafted countermeasures can be developed in such a way that they do not
violate the Geneva Caonventions.

Crafting Countermeasures: Employing countermeasures is 2 dynamic process. It is not possible

in this puper to provide a detuiled cookbook; however, the following wili provide a flavor for
how this might be accomplished:
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